BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF BERGEN)
COUNTY OF BERGEN, NEW JERSEY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2617 AND 2016
WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT




g
t=2)
a

1A

16

18

19

21

79
80
81

82

84

85

87

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Exhibit
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Roster of Officials
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent Auditor's Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements:
Comparative Statements of Net Position A
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes
in Net Position B
Comparative Statements of Cash Flows | C
Notes to Financial Statements
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedules of the Authority's Share of Net Pension Liability - PERS L-1
Schedule of the Authority's Contributions - (PERS) L-2
Notes to Required Schedules of Supplementary Information L-3

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
Combining Schedule of Net Position

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position

Combining Schedule of Cash Flows

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget — General Fund




g
pavl
[e}

89

91

92

93

95

99

101

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

TABLE OF CONTENTS, CONTINUED

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget —
Bergen Regional Medical Center

Schedule of Revenues and Expenses Compared to Budget —
Overpeck Landfill

Hospital Fund - Schedule of Expenses

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Schedule of Findings and Responses

General Comments

Status of Prior Year Audit Findings/Recommendations

Exhibit




Introductory Section




BERGEN COUNTY IMPROYVEMENT AUTHORITY

COMMISSIONERS

Cesar Gamio

Jeffrey Alan Bader

John H. Bang

Elizabeth Randall

Philip E. Wilson, LCSW

(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

ROSTER OF OFFICIALS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

POSITION TERM EXPIRES
Chairperson 2/1/2018

Vice Chairperson 2/1/2021
Commissioner 2/1/2019
Commissioner 2/1/2017
Commissioner 2/1/2015 (holdover)

1A




Financial Section




Ferraioli, Wielkotz, Cerullo & Cuva, P.A.

Charles J. Ferraioli, Jr., MBA, CPA, RMA Certified Public Accountants Newton Office
Steven D. Wielkotz, CPA, RMA 401 Wanagque Avenue 100B Main Street
James J. Cerullo, CPA, RMA Pompton Lakes, New Jersey 07442 Newton, N.J. 07860
Paul J. Cuva, GPA, RMA 973-835-7900 973-579-3212
Thomas M. Ferry, CPA, RMA Fax 973-835-6631 Fax 973-579-7128

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Chairperson and Commissioners
Bergen County Improvement Authority

327 E. Ridgewood Avenue, 3" Floor
Paramus, NJ 07652

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of the Bergen County Improvement Authority
as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the audit
requirements prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services, Department of Community Affairs,
State of New Jersey (the “Division™), and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are {ree of material misstatement.




Honorable Chairperson and Commissioners
Bergen County Improvement Authority
Page 2.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frand or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bergen County Improvement Authority as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, and the schedule of the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements, Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance,
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial statements that
collectively comprises the Bergen County Improvement Authority’s financial statements as a whole. The
supplementary schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplemental schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental schedules are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 16, 2018 on
our consideration of the Bergen County Improvement Authority’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on iniernal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Bergen County
Improvement Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Very truly yours,

Ferraiok, Z?w% Corillo & Cuva, PQ.

FERRAIOLIL WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

May 16,2018
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

As management of the Bergen County Improvement Authority, we offer the Authority’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the Authovity's financial performance during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016. Please read this analysis in conjunction with the Authority’s financial
statements, which follow this section.

Financial Highlights
» The Authority’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $4,037,321 (net position) for the fiscal year reported.
This compares to the previous year when liabilities exceeded assets by $1,104,152,
e Total net position is comprised of the following:
(1) Capital assets, net of related debt of $(68,109,441) includes property and equipment, net of
accumulated depreciation, and reduced for outstanding debt related to the purchase or

construction of capital assets.

(2) Net position of $65,569,778 are restricted by constraints imposed from outside the Authority such
as debt covenants, grantors, laws or regulations.

(3) Unrestricted net position of $6,576,984 represent the portion available to maintain the Authority’s
continuing obligations to citizens and creditors.
o Total liabilities of the Authority increased by $80,217,521 to $110,705,081 during the fiscal year largely
due to the issuance of additional bonds and project notes.
Overview of the Financial Statements
This annual report includes this management discussion, the independent auditor’s report and the basic financial
statements of the Authority, The financial statements also include notes that explain in more detail some of the

information in the financial statements,

Required Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Authority report information of the Authority using accounting methods similar
to those used by private sector companies. These statements offer short and long-term financial information
about its activities, The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Authority’s assets and liabilities and
provides information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to
Authority creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of the Authority
and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Authority.




BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31,2017

All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position. This statement measures the results of the Authority’s operations over the past year
and can be used to determine whether the Authority has recovered all its costs through user fees and other
charges, operational stability and credit worthiness.

The final required financial statement is the Stafement of Cash Flows. This statement reports cash receipts and
cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing and financing activities and
provides answers to such questions as what operational sources provided cash, what was the cash used for, and
what was the change in cash balance during the reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of the
financial statements. The notes to the financial statements begin immediately following the basic financial
statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report presents certain required
supplementary information. This supplementary information follows the notes to the financial statements.

Financial Analysis of the Authority

One of the most important questions asked about the Authority’s finances is “Is the Authority as a whole better
able to fulfill its mission as a result of this years activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report information about the Authority’s activities in a way
that will help answer this question. These two statements report net position of the Authority and the changes in
those assets. The reader can think of the Authority’s net position - the difference between assets and liabilities —
as one way to measure financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the
Authority’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However,
one will need to consider the non-financial factors such as changes in economic conditions, population growth,
development, and new or changed government regulation,




BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSEON AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Net Position

As year-to-year financial information is accumulated on a consistent basis, changes in net position may be
observed and used to discuss the changing financial position of the Authority as a whole.

The Authority’s net position at fiscal year-end is $4,037,321, This is a $5,141,473 increase over last year’s net

position of $(1,104,152). A summary of the Authority’s statement of net position is presented in the following
table:

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Dollar Percent
FY 2017 FY 2016 Change Change
Asset:
Current and Other Assets $95,974,464 $26,681,628 $69,292,836 259.70%
Capital Assets 18.674.503 2,341,590 16,332,913 697.51%
Total Assets 114.648.967 29,023,218 85,625,749 295.03%
Deferred OQutflows of Resources 211,693 360,190 (148.497) (41.23)%
Liabilities:
Long-term Debt Outstanding 77,228,944 3,359,630 73,869,314 2,198.73%
Other Liabilities 33,476,137 27,127,930 6,348,207 23.40%
Total Liabilities 110,705,081 30,487,560 80,217,521 263.12%
Deferred Inflows of Resources 118.258 118,258 100.00%
Net Position:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net
of Related Debt (68,109,441) (3,040,596) (65,068,845) 2,140.00%
Restricted 65,569,778 1,027,060 64,542,718 6,284.22%
Unrestricted 6,576,984 909,384 5,667,600 623.24%
Total Net Position 4,037.321 (1,104.152) 5.141.473 465,64%



BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Net Position (Continued)

A summary of the Authority’s prior year statement of net position is presented with comparative
restated FY 2015 balances in the following table:

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Dollar Percent
FY 2016 FY 2015 Change Chanpe
Asset:
Current and Other Assets $26,681,628 $33,754,022 $(7,072,394) (20.95)%
Capital Assets 2,341,590 8.374.466 (6,032,876) {72.04)%%
Total Assets 29,023,218 42,128,488 (13.105,270) (G1.11)Y%
Deferred Outflows of Resources 360,190 341,962 18.228 5.33%
Liabilities:
Long-term Debt Outstanding 3,359,630 5,507,028 (2,147,398) (38.99%
Other Liabilities 27.127.930 33,300,166 (6,172,236) (18.54)%
Total Liabilities 30,487.560 38,807.194 (8.319,634) 21.40%
Deferred Inflows of Resources 7.587 {1.587) (100.00)%
Net Position:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net
of Related Debt (3,040,596) (625,963) (2,414,633) 385.75%
Restricted 1,027,060 2,032,401 (1,005,341) {49.4M%
Unrestricted (909,384) 2,249,231 (1,339.847) (59.57%
Total Net Posiiion (1.104,152) 3,655,669 (4,759,821) (130.20)%



BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Net Position (Continued)
While the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position of net position, the Statement of

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position provides answers as to the nature and source of these changes.
As can be seen in the following table, net position increased by $5,141,473.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses
And Changes in Net Position

Dollar Percent

FY 2017 FY 2016 Change Change
Operating Revenues $221,208,806 $235,744,019 (14,535,213) (6.17)%

Non-operating Revenues 634,630 23.854 610,776 256.05%
Total Revenues 221.843.436 235.767.873 (13924437 (5.91)%
Depreciation and Amortization 2,341,591 7,493,430 (5,151,839) (68.75)%
Other Operating Expense 213,512,869 232,580,298 (19,067,429) (8.20)%

Other Non-Operating Expense 847.503 453.966 393,537 86.69%
Total Expenses 216.701.963 240,527.694 (23.825.731) (9.91)%
Change in Net Position 5,141,473 (4,759,821) 9,901,294 {208.02)%
Beginning Net Position {1.104,152) 3,655,669 (4,759,821) (130.20%
Ending Net Position $4,037.321 $(1,104.152) $5.141,473 (465.65)%

The Authority’s operating revenues decreased by $14,535,213 to $221,208,806 in fiscal year 2017 from
$235,744,019 in 2016. This decrease is primarily due to a decrease in revenue from Bergen Regional Medical
Center service charges from Medicare reimbursements, Non-operating revenues increased by $610,776 to
$634,630 from $23,854 largely due to premiums on short-term notes and interest on a working capital loan to
the Medical Center. Operating expenses decreased by $19,067,429 largely due to a decrease in expenses
relating to strategic operations and transition of the Authority’s hospital operating lease.



BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Net Position (Continued)

A summary of the Authority’s prior year statement of revenues, expenses and change in net position is presented
with comparative restated FY 2015 figures in the following table:

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses
And Changes in Net Position

Operating Revenues
Non-operating Revenues

Total Revenues

Depreciation and Amortization
Other Operating Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense
Total Expenses

Change in Net Position

Beginning Net Position

Ending Net Position

Budgetary Highlights

FY 2016
$235,744,019
23.854
235.767.873
7,493,430
232,580,298
453,966
240,527,694
(4,759,821)
3,655.669

$(1,104,152)

FY 2015
$227,342,148
8.909
227,351,057
7,493,419
221,971,139
586.265
230,050.823
(2,699,766)
6.355.435

33,655,669

Dollar
Change

$8,401,871

14.945
8.416.816

11

10,609,159
{132,299)

10.476.871
(2,060,055)
(2,699,760)

$(4,759.821)

Percent
Change

3.70%
167.75%
3.710%

0.00%
4.78%
(22.57)%
4.55%
76.30%
(42.48)%

(130.20)%

The State of New Jersey requires local authorities to prepare and adopt annual budgets in accordance with the
Local Authorities Fiscal Control Law and regulations adopted by the Local Finance Board pursuant to this
statute and codified as N.JLA.C. 5:31-1 et seq. The statutory budget was designed to demonstrate to the Bureau
of Authority Regulation of the Division of Local Government Services that the cash flows of the Authority for
the coming vear will be sufficient to cover operating expenses, interest accruing on bonded indebtedness and
cash payments of maturing bond and loan principal.




BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Budgetary Highlights (Continued)

The following tables provides a FY 2017 and FY 2016 budget comparison:

Budget vs. Actual
FY 2017
Hospital Fund:
Budpget Actual Variance

Revenues:

Operating $215,301,761 $220478,418 $5,176,657

Non-Operating 20.000 147.115 127.115
Total Revenues 215,321,761 220,625,533 5,303,772
Expenses:

Operating 211,511,499 211,272,469 239,030

Non-Operating 2454317 2,994,446 (540.129)
Total Appropriations 213.965.816 214266915 (301.099)
Budgetary Income/(Loss) 51,355,945 $6.358.618 $5,002,673
Geneyral Fund:
Revenues:

Operating 274,054 293,603 19,549

Non-Operating 520,000 520,624 624
Total Revenues 794,054 814,227 20,173
Expenses:

Operating 690,259 357,231 333,028

Non-Operating 24.400 24,400
Total Appropriations 714,659 381,631 333,028
Budgetary Income/(Loss) $79.395 $432,506 $353,201

-10-



BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Budgetary Highlights (Continued)

Budget vs. Actual

FY 2017
Overpeck Landfill Project:
Budget Actual Variance

Revenues;

Operating $1,221,785 $1,216,785 $(5,000)

Non-Operating 23 23
Total Revenues 1,221,785 1.216.808 (4.977)
Expenses:

Operating 5,000 : 5,000

Non-Operating 1,216,785 1,216,785
Total Appropriations 1,221,785 1,216,785 5,000
Budgetary Income/(Loss) -0- $ 23 $ 23

11~




BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

A12-

DECEMBER 31, 2017
Budgetary Highlights (Continued)
Budget vs. Actual
FY 2016
Hospital Fund:
Budget Actual Variance

Revenues: ‘

Operating $208.826,346 $232,595,575 $23,769,229

Non-Operating 6,797 23.405 16,608
Total Revenues 208,833,143 232.618.980 23.785.837
Expenses:

Operating 204,704,218 230,870,317 (26,166,099)

Non-Operating 4,128,925 4,127,987 938
Total Appropriations 208,833,143 234.998.304 (26,165.161)
Budgetary Income/(1oss) £ -0- $(2,379.324) $(2,379,324)
General Fund:
Revenues:

Operating 279,681 270,025 (9,656)

Non-Operating 128,431 250.864 122.433
Total Revenues 408,112 520.889 112,777
Expenses:

Operating 348,483 344,023 4,460

Non-Operating 59,629 59.629
Total Appropriations 408,112 403,652 4,460
Budgetary Income/(Loss) -0- _$117.237 $117.237



BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Budgetary Highlights (Continued)

Budget vs. Actual

FY 2016
Overpeck Landfill Project:
Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:
Operating $1,224,816 $1,217,865 $(6,951)
Non-Operating 35 122 67
Total Revenues 1,224 871 1,217,987 {6,884)
Expenses:
Operating 5,000 5,000
Non-Operating 1,219,871 1,217,865 2,006
Total Appropriations 1.224.871 1,217,865 7.006
Budgetary Income/(Loss) -0- ____$122 $122

-13-



BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The following schedule summarized the Capital Assets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Bergen Regional Medical Center

2017 2016
Leasehold Improvements $66,347,453 $64,886,898
Accumulated Depreciation (66,347,453) {64,005,862)
Construction in Progress 10,636,780 1,460,554
Subtotal 10,636,780 2,341,590

Emerson Golf Course

Land 8,037,723 -0-
Capital Assets, Net $18,674,503 $2.341,590

The Authority’s capital assets increased $18,674,504 from the previous year, Amortization expense for 2017
was $2,341,591.

Additional information on the BCIA’s capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements,

Debt Administration

While the Authority has been aggressive in attracting conduit debt issues, there are two debt issues that are their
obligation. The first is the Series 2010 Refunding of the Series 2000 serial bonds and term bonds issued in
conjunction with the privatizing of the Bergen Regional Medical Center. At December 31, 2017, this issue has
been retired. In addition, the Authority issued in 2005 the Overpeck Project 2005 Serial Bonds in the amount of
$12,000,000, of which $3,320,000 are outstanding as of December 31, 2017. Both issues are guarantced by the
County of Bergen. Full details of the bond issue outstanding are found in Note 9 to the financial statements. In
addition, the Authority issued $74,935,000 in Project Notes for the Medical Center Project and $8,500,000 in
Project Notes for the Emerson/Oradell Land Acquisition Project during 2017,

-14-




BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Debt Administration (Continued)

The following schedule summatized the Long Term Capital Debt, net of unamortized discounts and premiums,
as of December 31, 2017 and 2016:

2017 2016
General Fund
Project Bonds Payable $ -0 $23,771
Berpen Regional Medical Center
Project Bonds Payable -0- 1,124,585
Overpeck Landfill
Project Bonds Payable 3.348.944 4,364,630
Project Bonds Payable, Net $3.348,944 $5,512,986

Economic Factors, Future Years’ Budgets and Rates

The Commissioners and management of the Authority consider many factors when preparing cach year’s
budget. The main factors are growth in the Authority’s customer base and the continued operation of the
Bergen Regional Medical Center.

Contacting the Authority
This financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors with a general overview of the
Authority’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the fees it receives. If you have any

questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Bergen County Improvement Authority,
One Bergen County Plaza, Hackensack, New Jersey 07601,

-15-
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY Exhibit A

(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen) Page 1 of 2
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
2017 2016
ASSETS
Unrestricted Current Assefs
Operating Accounts
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 23,375,480 $ 24,032,025
Accounts Receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 48,701 81,857
Due From State of New Jersey 2,798 10,000
Due From Cousty of Bergen 1,128,960 1,813,038
Total Unrestricted Cutrent Assets 24,555,939 25,936,920
Restricted Current Assets
Debt Service Fund
Cash and Cash Equivalents 414,106 738,898
Construction Fund
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,889 - 1,881
Series 2017 Project Fund
Cash and Cash Equivalents 43 564,085
Series 2017 Cost of Issuance Fund
Cash and Cash Equivalents 21,410
Series 2017 Working Capital Fund
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,614,136
Accrued lnterest Receivable 85,684
Working Capital Loan Receivable 20,000,000
Medical Center Escrow
Cash and Cash Eguivalents 5,713,005
Unemployment Trust Fund
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,210 3,929
Total Restricted Current Assets 71,418,525 744,708
Total Current Assets G5,974,464 26,681,628
Non-Current Assets
Capital Assets
Land 8,037,723
Leasekold Improvements-Bergen Regional Medical Center 66,347,453 64,886,898
Accumulated Amortization {66,347.453) (64,605,862)
Construction in Progress 10,636,780 1,460,554
Total Non-Current Assets 18,674,503 2,341,590
Total Assets 114,648,967 26023218
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred Outflows - PERS 211,693 229,390
Deferred Loss on Refunding of Debt 130,800
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 211,693 360,180
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 114,860,660 $ 29,383,408

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

-16-




BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY Exhibit A
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen) Page 2 of 2
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
2017 2016
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities (Payable from Unrestricted Assets)
Accounts Payable 3 466,229 $ 1,001,498
Accounts Payable - PERS 23,446 20,546
Contracts Payable 8,364,809 22,926,604
Due to County of Bergen 8,045,683 45,683
Payroli Taxes Payable 95
Accrued Liabilities - Landfill Closure/Postclosure 161,037 191,037
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Assets 17,061,204 24,185,463
Current Liabilities (Payable from Restricted Assets)
Project Bonds Payable 1,055,000 2,133,356
Project Notes Payable 8,500,000
Escrow Deposit Payahle 5,713,005
Accrued Interest on Bonds and Notes 483,764 65,199
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets 15,751,769 2,218,555
Total Current Liabilities 32,842,973 26,404,018
Non-Current Liabilities
Compensated Absences Payable 44,013 38,946
Net Pension Liability - PERS 589,151 684,566
Project Notes Payable 74,935,000
Project Bonds Payable (net) 2,203,944 3,359,630
Total Non-Current Liabilities 77,862,108 4,083,542 :
Tatal Liabilities 110,705,081 30,487,560
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows - PERS 118,258
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 110,823,339 30,487,560
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets (68,109,441} (3.040,598)
Restricted For:
Debt Service 307,708 1,021,250
Construction Fund 43,191,357 1,881
Unemployment Frust 4,210 3,929
Working Capital Fund 21,699,820
Golf Course Project 366,683 §
nrestricted: I
Designaled - Bergen Regional Medical Center ] 8,013,605 2,749,934 i
Undesignated (1,436,621) (1,840,550)
Total Net Position Y 4,037.321 h {1,104,152)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

{A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
COMFPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

OPERATING REVENUES
Service Charges - Bergen Regional Medical Center
Bergen County Contributions
Solomon Health Group Lease
Solomon Health Group Oversight
Miscellancous

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Other Expenses
Cost of Providing Services
Other Expenses
Reimbursements to Bergen County
Amortization of Leasehold Improvements

Total Operating Expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income
Interest on Working Capital Toan
Premium on Notes
Note Issuance Costs
Interest Expense
Amaortization of Discounts, Premiums, Deferred Losses

Total Non-Operating Income (Expenses)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position, January 1,

Net Position, December 3 1,

$

Exhibit B

2017 2016
198,109,477 § 222,487,062
13,168,225 3,890,838
9,364.442 8,733,731
273,059 362,363
293,603 270,025
221,208,806 235,744,019
405,580 416,038
274,563 274,608
330,647 358,871
210,661,950 230,223,781
1,840,129 1,307,000
2,341,591 7,493,430
215,854,460 240,073,728
5,354,346 (4,329,709)
62,270 23,854
85,492
486,868
(488,188)
(222,557) (317,209)
(136,758) (136,757)
(212,373) (430,112)
5,141,473 (4,759,821)
(1,104,152) 3,655,669
4037321 § (1,104,152)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY Lxhibit C

(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen) Page | of 2
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS QF CASH FLOWS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
2017 201
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Customers 203,822,482 222,487,062
Cash Received from Bergen County 21,852,303 3,256,029
Cash Received ftom Selomon Health Group 9,637,501 9,096,094
Cash Received from Miscellaneous Fees 326,759 392,286
Cash Paid to Bergen County (1,840,129) (1,307,000)
Cash Paid to Suppliers and Others (226,309,010) (235,568,194)
Cash Paid to Employees (405,580) (416,038)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 7,084,326 (2,059,761)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Project Notes Issued 83,435,000
Premium Received 486,868
Issuance Costs Paid (488,188}
Principal Payments on Bonds (2,170,000} (3,733,000)
Acquisition of Capital Assets (18,252,995) (1,460,554)
Interest Paid on Bonds (225,501) (343,481)
Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities 62,785,184 (5,550,035)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Working Capital Loans (20,000,000}
Interest Received 62,078 23,854
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities (19,937,922) 23,854
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Eguivalents 49,931,588 (7.594,942)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1, 24,776,733 32,371,075
Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31, 74,708,321 24,776,733
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31
Ungestricted - Cash and Cash Equivalents 23,375,480 24,032,025
Restricted - Cash and Cash Equivalents 51,332,841 744,708
74,708,321 24,776,733

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY Exhibit C
{A Component Unit of the County of Bergen) Page 2 of2
COMPARATIVE STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

2017 2016 ‘E
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities: .
Operating Tncome (Loss) $ 5,354,346 b (4,329,709)
Adjusiments to Reconcile Operating Income (I.oss) to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Amortization of Leaschold Improvements 2,341,591 7,493,430
Adjustment to Pension Expense 43,040 58,958
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable 33,156 122,261
(Increase)/Decrease in Due From Bergen County 684,078 (634,809)
(Increase)/Decrease in Due From State of New Jersey 7,202 (10,000)
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable (535,269) 623,976
Increase/(Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable 5,067 38,946
Increase/(Decrease) in Contracts Payable (14,561,795) (5,422,887)
Increase/(Decrease) in Escrow Deposits 5,713,005
Increase/(Decrease) in Due to Bergen County 8,000,000
Increase/(Decrease) in Payroll Taxes Payable (95) 73
Total Adjustments 1,729,980 2,269,948 |
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 7,084,326 $ (2.059,761) ‘

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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1.

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
{A_ Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Reporting Entity

The Bergen County Improvement Authority (the “Authority™) is a public body politic, corporate,
organized and existing under the County Improvement Authorities Law, constituting Chapter 183
of the Pamphlet Laws of 160, as Amended and Supplemented (the "Act"), N.J.S.A. 40:37A-1,
et. seq., and was created by virtue of an ordinance of the County of Bergen, New Jersey (the
“County™), adopted June 10, 1986. Prior to 1993, the Authority was inactive, and did not adopt
a budget or have any transactions,

The Authority has broad powers under the Act including, among others, the following; to retain,
operate and administer its property; to provide for bonds and to secure their payment and rights
of holders thereof; to charge and collect service charges for the use of its facilities and to revise
such service charges to ensure that the revenues of the Authority will at all times be adequate to
pay all operating and maintenance and expenses, including reserves, insurance, extensions and
replacements, and to pay the principal of and the interest on any bonds or loans, and to maintain
such reserves or sinking funds therefore as may be required by the terms of any contract of the
Authority; and to make and enforce rules and regulations for the management of'its business and
affairs.

The Authority is governed by a Board of Commissioners (the "Board") consisting of five
members appointed by the County of Bergen Board of Chosen Freeholders. An Executive
Director is appointed by the Board and functions as Chief Executive Officer responsible for the
daily operations of the Authority, A Chief Financial Officer is appointed by the Board and
oversees the fiscal affairs of the Authority.

Component Unit

In evaluating how to define the Authority for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include any potential component units
in the financial reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statements
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, and GASB Statement No. 61, The
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in-substance part of the
government's operations. Each discretely presented component unit would be or is reported in
a separate column in the financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the
government,
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Reporting Entity

Component Unit, (continued)

The basic-but not the only-criterion for including a potential component unity within the
reporting entity is the governing body's ability to exercise oversight responsibility. The most
significant manifestation of this ability is financial interdependency. Other manifestations ofthe
ability to exercise oversight responsibility include, but are not limited to, the selection of
governing authority, the designation of management, the ability to significantly influence
operations, and accountability for fiscal matters, A second criterion used in evaluating potential
component units is the scope of public service. Application ofthis criterion involves considering
whether the activity benefits the government and/or its citizens.

A third criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the
reporting entity is the existence of special financing relationships, regardless of whether the
government is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. Finally, the nature and significance of
a potential component unit to the primary government could warrant its inclusion within the
reporting entity.

Based upon the application of these criteria, the Authority has no component units and is a
component unit of the County of Bergen.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The accounts of the Authority are organized on the basis of funds, in accordance with the various
Bond Resolutions (see Note 3), each of which is considered a separate accounting activity. The
operations of each system are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounting
records that comprise its assets, deferred inflows and outflows, liabilities, net position, revenues
and expenses. Government resources are allocated and accounted for in individual funds based
upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are
controlled. The various activities are grouped into one generic fund type and one broad fund
category, as follows:

Proprietary Fund Type

Enterprise Fund - The Enterprise Fund is used to account for governmental operations which are
financed and operated in a manner similar to private enterprises, where the intent of the
governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or
services to its users on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user

charges.
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1.

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

B.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation,
(continued)

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement
focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being
meastred such as current financial resources or economiic resources. The basis of accounting
indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements.

The Authority's financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All assets, all deferred inflows and outflows and all
liabilities associated with these operations are included on the Statement of Net Position.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The Authority's financial {ransactions are recorded in accounts that are created by various
resolutions adopted by the Authority to meet bond or note covenant requirements (more fully
defined in Note 3).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management of the Authority to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates are used to determine
useful lives of leasehold improvements and certain claims and judgment liabilities, among other
accounts. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the December 31, 2016 balances to conform to
the December 31, 2017 presentation.
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

Assets, Deferred Inflows and Qutflows, Liabilities and Net Position

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, cash in banks, certificates of
deposit, deposits with the New Jersey Cash Management Fund and all short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase. Investments are
reported at market value and except for the operating accounts are limited by the 1997 Bond
Resolution as amended and supplemented thereto. Operating account investments are limited by
NISA 40A:5-15.1 et seq.

Inventory
The costs of inventories are deemed immaterial and are recognized as expenses when purchased
rather than when consumed. The Authority does not record inventory on its statement of net

position.

Accounts Receivable

All receivables are reported at their gross value and where appropriate, are reduced by the
estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. Changes in the allowance for
uncollectibles is recorded as an adjustment to revenue or as bad debt expenses depending on its
effect on current year or prior year allowance amounts and the results of those changes.

Interfunds Receivable and Pavable

During the course of its operations, the Authority has numerous transactions between funds
(accounts) to finance operations, provide services, construct assets, and retire debt, To the extent
that certain transactions between the accounts had not been paid or received as of the balance
sheet dates, balances of interfund amounts receivable and payable have not been recorded.

Restricted Assets

Certain assets are classified as restricted on the statement of net position because they are
maintained in separate bank accounts and their use is limited by the various Bond Resohutions
as amended and supplemented thereto or are held in trust for state unemployment compensation
insurance benefits.
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

C. Assets, Deferred Inflows and Outflows, Liabilities and Net Position, (continued)

Capital Assets

All capital assets acquired or constructed by the Authority are reported as expenses in the
account that finances the acquisition of the assets and are capitalized in the Operating Accounts,
Capital assets are defined by the Authority as assets with an individual cost of $2,000 and an
estimated useful life, of at least two years. Such capital assets are valued at historical costs,

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Construction costs are charged to construction in progress until such time as they are completed
and certified by the Authority's consulting engineers, at which time they are transferred to their
respective asset category and are then depreciated over their useful lives. Interest incurred during
the construction phase of capital assets is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed. The total net interest expense incurred by the Authority for the years ended
December 31,2017 and 2016 was $222,557 and $317,209, respectively. $421,509 and $-0- of
these amounts were included as part of the cost of capital assets under construction for these
years.

All capital assets are depreciated on the straight-line method based on their asset class and
estimated useful lives based upon the lease terms between the County and the Authority which
isfora 19 year period expiring in 2017, All capital assets, including leasehold improvements will
be fully depreciated at the end of the lease term.

Class Life

Leasehold Improvements 19 Years

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

The Statement of Net Position reports separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources, reported after total assets,
represents a reduction of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense) at that time. Deferred inflows of resources, reported after total
liabilities, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will be
recoghized as an inflow of resources (revenue) at that time,
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1.

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the Countyv of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (continued)

C. Assets, Deferred Inflows and Outflows, Liabilities and Net Position, {(continued)

Deferred Qutflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources, (continued)

Transactions are classified as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflow of resources
only when specifically prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
standards. The Authority is required to report the following as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources:

Defined Benefit Pension Plans - The difference between expected (actuarial) and actual
experience, changes in actuarial assumptions, net difference between projected (actuarial)
and actual earnings on pension plan investments, changes in the Authority's proportion of
expenses and liabilities to the pension as a whole, differences between the Authority's
pension contribution and its proportionate share of contributions, and the Authority's
pension contributions subsequent to the pension valuation measurement date.

Deferred Loss on Refunding of Bonds - Deferred loss on refunding arising from the
issuance of revenue refunding bonds, is recorded as s deferred outflow of resources. The
deferred loss is amortized in a systematic and rational method as a component of interest
expense.

Compensated Absences

Sick leave, personnel time, compensatory time and salary related payments and in certain
instances vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned if the employee's
rights to receive compensation are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that
the Authority will compensate the employee for the benefits.

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net
position, Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

Net Position
Restricted net position is limited to outside third-party restrictions either by law or by other
organizations or persons external to the Authority. Unrestricted net position represents the net

position neither restricted nor invested in capital assets, net of related debt,
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1.

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the Countv of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, {continued)

C.

Assets, Deferred Inflows and Qutflows, Liabilities and Net Position, (continued)

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the Authority will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g.,
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources, In order to calculate the amounts
to report as restricted — net position and unrestricted — net position in the financial statements,
a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be
applied. It is the Authority's policy to consider restricted — net position to have been depleted
before unrestricted— net position is applied.

Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprictary fund's principal ongoing operations, The
principal operating revenues of the Authority are charges to customers for services. Operating
expenses include the cost of operations and services, administrative expenses and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses. State and federal grants for the operation of the Authority
are considered operating revenues. Transactions or other events that are both unusual in nature
and infrequent in occurrence are reported as extraordinary items.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Authority annually prepares operating budgets for the General Fund, Bergen Regional Medical

Center and Overpeck Landfill. The budgets are prepared in accordance with the Budget Manual for

Local Public Authorities as promulgated by the Division of Local Government Services, Bureau of
Authority Regulation, which differs in certain respects from accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America. The budgets serve as a plan for expenses and the proposed means for
financing them. Budgetary control is exercised within the respective system. Unexpended
appropriations lapse at year end.
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY, (continued)

The annual budgets are approved at least sixty days prior to the beginning of the fiscal year, The
budgets must be approved by the Board and submitted to the Division of Local Government Services,
Bureau of Authority Regulation for approval prior to adoption. Budget adoptions and amendments are
recorded in the Authority's minutes.

Six Year Capital budgets are also prepared for each system. Included within the budgets are individual
projects along with their estimated cost, completion date and source of funding,

The encumbrance method of accounting is utilized by the Authority for budgetary purposes. Under
this method purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for expenditures of resources are
recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable budget appropriation.

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
outstanding encumbrances at year-end for which goods or services are received, are classified to
expenses and accounts payable. All other encumbrances in the annual budgeted funds are designated
at year-end and are either cancelled or are included as reappropriations of unrestricted net position for
the subsequent year. Encumbrances at year-end in funds that are budgeted on a project basis
automatically carry forward along with their related appropriations and are not subject to annual
cancellations and reappropriations.

Revenues

After the operating budgets are adopted, service charge fees for the Bergen Regional Medical Center
are approved by the Board. Service charges are directly imposed on users through bills based on
services provided. Revenue is recognized in the year that the user is billed.

Designated Unrestricted Net Position

The Authority is permitted under budgetary accounting practices promulgated by the Division of Local
Government Services to designate unrestricted net position. The Authority Board of Commissioners
may formally dedicate net position to establish designations of unrestricted net position to meet policy
adopted by the Board. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Authority has $8,013,605 and
$2,749,934 of net position designated for the Bergen Regional Medical Center,
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

CREATION OF FUNDS

In accordance with the bond resolution, the Authority has established the following accounts for
the following restricted purposes:

Account Use for Which Restricted
General Fund:

Debt Service Fund Principal and interest on the Authority’s bonds.
Construction Fund Various capital projects of the Authority.

Hospital Fund:

Debt Service Fund Principal and interest on the Authority’s bonds and
notes.
Construction fimd Various capital projects of the Authority.

Working Capital Fund Working capital loans to Medical Center facilities,

Overpeck Landfill:
Debt Service Fund Principal and interest on the Authority’s bonds.

In addition, the Authority has established trust accounts to be held in reserve for payroll and
related liabilities, such as State Unemployment Insurance.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits - The Authority’s deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC), Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) or New Jersey's Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). The Authority is required to deposit their funds in a
depository which is protecting such funds pursuant to GUDPA. The New Jersey Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act requires all banks doing business in the State of New Jersey to pledge
collateral equal to at least 5% of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the average
amount of its public funds in excess of the lessor of 75% of its capital funds or $200 million for all
deposits not covered by the FDIC.

Bank balances are insured up to $250,000 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank. SIPC replaces
cash claims up to a maximum of $250,000 for each failed brokerage firm. At December 31,2017 and
2016, the book value of the Authority's deposits were $74,708,321 and $24,776,733, respectively, and
bank balances of the Authority's cash and deposits amounted to $74,753,518 and $25,111,178,
respectively.

229.




4.

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROYEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, (continued)

The Authority's deposits which are displayed on the balance sheet as "cash and cash equivalents” are
categorized as:

2017 2016
Depository Account '
Insured:
Restricted $51,332,841 $744,708
Unrestricted 23,375,480 24,032,025

$74.708.321 $24.,776,733

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the government's deposits may not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a formal policy for
custodial credit risk. As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, none of the Authority's bank balances were
exposed to custodial credit risk.

Investments

The Authority's investment practices are governed by New Jersey State Statute 40A.:5-15, Statutes
authorize the Authority to invest in certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, passbooks, and
other available bank investments provided that approved securities are pledged to secure those funds
on deposit in an amount equal to the amount of those funds and a maturity date not greater than 12
months from the date of purchase. In addition, the Authority can invest in direct debt securities of the
United States or obligations guaranteed by the United States, bonds and other obligations of the local
municipality or bonds or obligations of school districts of which the Authority is a part or within
which the Authority is located unless such investments are expressly prohibited by law.

Monies in the funds established under the Bond Resolutions may be invested at the Authority's
direction in Investment Securities, which are defined by the Bond Resolutions as:

(1) Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by the
United States of America.

(2) Government money market mutual funds.

(3) Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in accordance with
an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than 397 days from the date
of purchase, provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any
index or other external factor.
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
{A Compenent Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

4, DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, (continued)

Investments, (continued)

(4) Bonds or other obligations of the local unit or bonds or other obligations of school districts of
which the local unit is a part or within which the school district is located.

(5) Bonds or other obligations having a maturity date not more than 397 days from the date of
purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the State Department of the Treasury for
investment by local units.

(6) Local government investment pools.

(7) Deposits with the State Cash Management Fund established pursuant to Section 1 of P.L. 1977,
c.281 (N.J.S.A. 52:18A-90.4),

(8) Certain agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities, as defined in the Bond
Resolutions,

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Authority had no investments.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The Authority's investment maturities are limited by its bond indenture as a means of
managing its exposure to interest rate risk, Additionally, New Jersey Statutes 40A:5-15.1(a) limits the
length of time for most investments to 397 days.

Monies in the funds established under the Resolutions may be invested at the Authority's discretion
in Investment Obligations, which are defined by the Resolutions.

Credit Risk - The Bond Resolution and State law (N.J.S.A. 40A:5-15.1) limits investments as noted
above. The Authority does not have an investment policy that would further limit its investment
choices.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Authority places no limit in the amount the Authority may invest
in any one issuer.
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Bond covenants of the Authority require portions of the debt proceeds as well as other resources to
be set aside for various purposes under the control of the Bond Trustee. These amounts are reported
as restricted assets, Cash and investments restricted for debt service payment on bonds are segregated
in the "Debt Service Fund" accounts. Cash and investments restricted for use in construction are
segregated in the "Construction Fund” accounts.

In addition, the Authority has established trust accounts to be held in reserve for payroll and
related liabilities, such as State Unemployment Insurance.

The Authority's 2017 Project Notes establish the following restricted accounts:

Constryction Fund — Restricted for the portion of the costs of the Project pertaining
to various capital improvements to the facilities.

Working Capital Fund — Restricted for the portion of the costs of the Project pertaining
to working capital loans to the Medical Center facilities.

Debt Service Fund — Restricted for interest and principal payments on the Notes,

Cost of Issuance Fund - Restricted for payment of the costs of issuance on the Notes.

USER CHARGES AND OTHER FEES RECEIVABLE

User charges and other fees receivable at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following:

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
Accounts Receivable - Financing Fees $48,297 $81,453
Other Fees Receivable 404 404
Gross Accounts Receivable $48.701 $81,857

CAPITAL ASSETS

The Authority has acquired a Leasehold Interest in the Bergen Regional Medical Center., The
Leasehold Interest is being amortized on a straight-line basis, over a 19 year period.
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7. CAPITAL ASSETS, (continued)

Capital asset activity for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2017 2017 Increases Decreases 2017
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ - $8,037,723 5 - $8,037,723

Construction in Progress 1,460,554 10.636.780 1,460,554 10.636.780
Total Capital Assets, not being depreciated 1,460,554 18,674,503 1,460,554 18,674,503
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Leasehold Improvements 04.886.898 1,460,555 - 66,347.453
Total capital assets being depreciated 64.886.898 1.460,555 - 66,347,453
Less accumulated depreciation for: 0

Leasehold improvements (64.005.862) (2,341,591} - (66.347.453)
Total accumulated depreciation (64.003.862) (2.341.591) - (66,347.453)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 881,036 (881,036) - -

Total capital assets, net $2.341.590 $17,793.467 $1.460,554 $18.674,503
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
2016 2016 Increases Decreases 2016
Capital assets, not being amortized:

Construction in Progress §_ - $1.460,554 5 - $1.460.554
Capital assets, being amortized:

L.easehold Improvements 64,886,898 - - 64.886.898
Total capital assets being amortized 64,886,898 - - 64.886.898
Less accumnulated amortization for:

Leasehold improvements (56.512.432) (7.493.430) - (64.005.862)
Total accumulated amortization {56,512.432) (7.493.430) - {64.005.862)
Total capital assets, being amoitized, net 8,374,466 (7.493.,430) - 881,036
Total capital assets, net $8.374.466 {$6,032.876) - $2,341,590
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8. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

The Authority has issued debt on behalf of third-party entities. The Authority has no obligation for
the debt beyond the resources provided by the related leases or loans, and, accordingly, the debt is not
reflected as a liability in the accompanying financial statements.

The Authority’s conduit debt activity for the year ending December 31, 2017 is as follows:

Balance Balance
Dec.31, 2016 Issued Retired Dec.31, 2017

Series 2001 Bonds (Note 8A) $21,000,000 $ $ $21,000,000
Series 2002 Bonds (Note 8B) 290,000 45,000 245,000
Series 2005 Bonds (Note 8C) 153,144,590 4,794,736 148,349,854
Series 2006 Bonds (Note 8D) 18,305,000 930,000 17,375,000
Series 2007 Bonds (Note 8E) 39,360,000 7,505,000 31,855,000
Series 2008 Bonds (Note 8F) 1,265,000 425,000 840,000
Series 2009 Bonds (Note 8G) 15,796,071 2,466,666 13,329,405
Series 2010 Bonds (Note 8H) 62,757,000 4,290,000 58,467,000
Series 2012 Bonds (Note 8I) 48,750,000 4,475,000 44,275,000
Series 2013 Municipal Banc

Leasing Program (Note 81) 15,000,000 15,000,000
Series 2014 Bonds Pooled Loan

Revenue Bonds A&B (Note §K) 65,295,000 2,525,000 62,770,000
Series 2014 Admin, Complex 6,195,000 3,075,000 3,120,000
Series 2014 School District Revenue

Bonds (Note 8L) 30,565,000 4,345,000 26,220,000
Series 2015 (Felician College) (Note M) 30,000,000 685,000 29.3E5,000
Series 2016C Bonds (Note 8N) 65,150,000 390,000 64,760,000
Series 2016 Bonds (Note 80) 46,305,000 2,780,000 43,525,000
Series 2016 {CAP Project) Bonds (Note 8P) 13,380,000 315,000 13,065,000
Series 2017C Gov't Loan Revenue Bonds

(Note 8Q) 32,680,000 32,680,000

$632,557,661 $32.680,000 $39.046.402 $626.191.259

A. Series 2001 Bonds

In September, 2001 the BCIA issued bonds in the amount of $21,000,000 with a final maturity
of March 15, 2034,

The Bonds were issued to provide funding for a loan, the proceeds of which are to be used to
pay: (I) costs of a redevelopment project, specifically the development of a 160-unit multifamily
residential project (the Kentshire Apartment Project) which will be located in Midland Park,
New Jersey, (ii) certain costs of issuance of the Bonds, and (iii) capitalized interest on the Bonds
through April 1, 2003,

The Authority is to receive 10 basis points per year on the bonds outstanding in accordance with
this bond issuance.
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CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

B. Series 2002 Bonds

In March, 2002, the BCIA issued bonds in the amount of $7,305,000, with a final maturity date
of March 1, 2022, and an interest rate varying from 2.00% to 5.00%. The Bond consists of the
$2,575,000 County Guaranteed Capital Equipment Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2002A (the
“Series 2002A Bonds™), $730,000 County Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series 20028 (the
“Series 2002B Bonds™) and the $4,000,000 County Guaranteed Governmental Loan Revenue
Bonds, Series 2002C (the “Series 2002C Bonds™).

Proceeds of the Series 2002A Bonds were used to: (i) finance the acquisition and installation
of certain items of equipment to be simultaneously leased to certain governmental units, which
include the Borough of Wood-Ridge, the Borough of Lodi, the Garfield Board of Education, the
Pascack Valley Board of Education, the Dumont Board of Education, the Maywood Board of
Education, the Ramapo-Indian Hills Regional Board of Education, and the Fair Lawn Board of
Education; and (ii) pay certain costs incurred in connection with the issuance and delivery of the
Series 2002A Bonds.

The Series 2002B Bonds were issued to provide funds to make a loan to the Housing
Development Corporation of Bergen County to: (i) refinance a portion of the costs of the
construction of a low income residential building and; (i1) pay certain costs of issuance incurred
in connection with the issuance and delivery of the Series 2002B Bonds.

The Series 2002C Bonds were issued to provide funds to make loans to the County of Bergen
to finance improvements to the Bergen Regional Medical Center.

Series 2005 Bonds

In January 2005, the Authority issued $8,380,000 principal amount of Village of Ridgewood,
New Jersey guaranteed Revenue Bonds. The $8,380,000 principal amount of Revenue Bonds,
Series 20035 consists of $8,205,000 Village of Ridgewood Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series
2005 A and $175,000 Taxable Village of Ridgewood Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series 2005
B (Ridgewood Senior Citizens Housing Corporation, Inc. Project). The Series A Bonds consist
of $8,205,000 serial bonds having a final maturity of February 1, 2025 and interest rates ranging
from 2.50% to 4.60%. The Series B Bonds consist of $175,000 3.36% Term Bonds due
February 1, 2006.
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CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

C. Series 2005 Bonds, (continued)

The bonds were issued to make a loan to the Ridgewood Senior Citizens Housing Corporation
for the purpose of (1) refinancing an outstanding mortgage between the Ridgewood Senior
Citizens Housing Corporation and the United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development relating to a project consisting of the acquisition of land and the construction of
a 130 unit residential apartment complex for low-income handicapped persons and senior
citizens in the Village of Ridgewood, New Jersey; (2) financing certain capital improvements
to the Ridgewood Senior Citizens Housing Corporation’s facility, and (3) paying certain costs
of issuance with respect to the Bonds. To evidence its obligation to repay such loan, the
Ridgewood Senior Citizens Housing Corporation and the Authority will enter into a loan
agreement dated January 1, 2005. Payment of the principal and interest on the Bonds are further
secured by a full, unconditional and irrevocable guaranty of the Village of Ridgewood, New
Jersey.

In August 2005, the Authority issued $30,075,000 principal amount of County of Guaranteed
Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 (County Administration Complex). These bonds are serial bonds
having a final maturity date of November 15, 2026 and interest rates ranging from 4.00% to
5.00%. These bonds were issued for the purpose of (1) advance refunding all of the New Jersey
Economic Development Authority’s Lease Revenue Bonds (Bergen County Administration
Complex), Series 1998, and (2) paying costs and expenses associated with the issuance of the
Bonds, Payment of principal and interest on the Bonds are further secured by a full,
unconditional and irrevocable guaranty of the County of Bergen to pay, when due, the principal
(inchuding sinking fund installments, if any) and interest on the Bonds.

InNovember 2005, the Authority issued $37,985,000 Senior Special Purpose Limited Obligation
Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 B (EnCap Golf Holdings, LLC Project). The 2005 B bonds are
special limited obligations of the Authority, the principal, purchase and/or redemption price of
and interest on which are payable by the Authority solely from the 2005 A & B Trust Estate,
which includes the payments to be made by EnCap Golf Holdings, LLC. under a loan agreement
dated the date of delivery of the 2005 B Bonds. EnCap Golf Holdings, LLC’s payment
obligations under the 2005 B Loan Agreement are (1) as they relate to the payment of the
principal, purchase and/or redemption price, if any, on the 2005 B Bonds, obligations of the
borrower payable from the Series 2005 B Bonds pledged rights and revenues, (2) as they relate
to the payment of interest on the 2005 B Bonds, obligations of the borrower defined Company
Revenues, and (3) as they relate to the payment of administrative expenses. The Payment of
principal, purchase price and/or redemption price of or interest on the 2005 B Bonds are
supported by an irrevocable direct pay letter of credit issued in favor of the BCIA Bond Trustee
by Wachovia Bank National Association.
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CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

C. Series 2005 Bonds, (continued)

The Authority also issued $26,770,000 Subordinate Purpose Limited Obligation Revenue Bonds,
Series C and $38,230,000 Subordinate Special Purpose Limited Obligation Revenue Bonds,
Series 2005 D (EnCap Golf Holdings, LLC Project). The 2005 C & D Bonds are special, limited
obligations of the Authority, the principal, purchase and/or redemption price of and interest on
which are payable by the Authority solely from the 2005 C & D Trust Estate, which includes the
payments to be made by EnCap Golf Holdings, LLC, a limited liability company established
pursuant to the laws of the State of Delaware (the “Borrower™), under a Loan Agreement dated
the date of delivery of the 2005 C & D Bonds (the “2005 C & D Loan Agreement™), by and
between the Authority and the Borrower. The Borrower’s payment obligations under the 20053
C & D Loan Agreement are, (1) as they relate to the payment of principal, purchase an/or
redemption price, if any, on the 2005 C & D Bonds, obligations of the Borrower payable from
the Series 2005 C & D Bonds pledged rights and revenues, (2} as they relate to the payment of
interest on the 2005 C & D Bonds, obligations of the Borrower payable from the hereinafter

defined Company Revenues, and (3) as they relate to the payment of administrative expenses,
a general obligation of the Borrower. The payment of the principal, purchase and/or redemption
price of or interest on each series of the 2005 C & D Bonds are supported by a corresponding
irrevocable, direct pay letter of credit (each, a “Letter of Credit” and together, the “Letters of
Credit”) issued in favor of the BCIA Bond Trustee by Wachovia Bank, National Association.

Additionally, the Authority issued $49,136,016 principal amount of County of Bergen
Guaranteed Governmental Loan Revenue Bonds consisting of $24,100,000 Current Interest
Bonds (Series 2005A); $15,316,016 Capital Appreciation Bonds (Series 2005B); and $9,720,000
Current Interest Bonds (Series 2005C). Proceeds of the Series 2005A, B and C Bonds were used
to provide funds to make loans to certain municipalities which include the Borough of North
Arlington, the City of Englewood, and the Borough of Paramus (Borrowers). The Authority has
entered into Borrower Purchase Agreements to secure the Borrowers Loans. Pursuant to the
Borrower Purchase Agreements, the Authority purchased a Borrower Bond in the principal
amount equal to the loan that the Authority makes to each borrower. Each borrower is required
to make the loan repayments to the Authority pursuant to its Borrower Bond. The aggregate of
the Loan Repayments made by the Borrowers will be sufficient to enable the Authority to pay
the principal or Redemption Price, if any, of and interest on each series of the Bonds. The
payment of the principal of (including sinking fund installments, if any) and interest on the
Bonds are further secured by the County Guaranty, an unconditional and irrevocable obligation
of the County. The County has the power and obligation, if necessary, to cause the levy of ad
valorem taxes upon all the taxable property within the County without limitation as to rate or
amount for the payment of its obligations under the County Guaranty.
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CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

D. Series 2006 Bonds

In March 2006, the Authority issued $22,905,000 principal amount of County Guaranteed

Governmental Loan Bonds, Series 2006. The bonds bear interest at various rates between 3.5%
and 5.00% and have a final maturity of September 1, 2030.

The Series 2006 Bonds were issued to provide funds to make a loan to the Township of Saddle
Brook in the County of Bergen, New Jersey for the purpose of (1) permanently financing the
principal and interest on $21,050,000 bond anticipation notes of the Township maturing
March 15, 2006; (2) providing for various capital improvements; (3) providing funds for the
payment of capitalized interest on the 2006 bonds through September 1, 2006; and (4) paying
certain costs of issuance on the 2006 Bonds.

To evidence its obligation to repay such loan, the Township issued and delivered to the Authority
$22,905,000 principal amount of its General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006 (the “Borrower
Bond”). Payment of the principal of (including sinking fund payments, if any) and interest on
the 2006 Bonds are further secured by a full, unconditional and irrevocable guaranty of the
County of Bergen, New Jersey.

Additionally, in June of 2006, the Authority issued $2,900,000 principal amount of County
Guaranteed Governmental Ioan Bonds, Series 2006. The bonds bear interest at a rate of 5.00%
and have a final maturity of December, 2031,

These bonds were issued to provide funds to permanently finance the bonds of the Township of
Lyndhurst, County of Bergen, New Jersey, which were issued simultancously with the
Governmental Loan bonds, The bonds will be issued to finance the construction of a shared
services building between the Township of Lyndhurst and the Lyndhurst Board of Education, as
well as other capital improvement projects. The Township issued bonds and sold the bonds
directly to the Authority. The Authority funded the purchase through the sale of Governmental
Loan Bonds.

The Governmental Loan Bonds are secured by the general obligation payments of the Township
of Lyndhurst pursuant to the Township of Lyndhurst’s Bond. Payments of principal and interest
on the Governmental Loan Bonds are fully, unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the
County of Bergen, New Jersey.
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8. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

E. Series 2007 Bonds

In May 2007, the Authority issued $31,855,000 principal amount of County of Bergen
Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series 2007A and $33,955,000 County of Bergen Guaranteed
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007B. The Series 2007 Bonds were issued to make a loan to the Bergen
County Utilities Authority for the purpose of financing (1) the current refunding of $31,235,000
principal amount of the Utilities Authority’s 1997 Water Pollution Control System Revenue
Bonds, Series A which are callable on June 15, 2007 (the “2007A Project™); (2) the current
refunding of $35,455,000 principal amount of the Authority’s 1998 Water Pollution Control
System Revenue Bonds, Series A on a forward delivery basis, which bonds are callable on
December 15, 2007 (the “2007B Project”); and (3) the payment of certain costs of issuing the
Bonds.

To evidence its obligation to repay such loan, the Utilities Authority issued and delivered to the
Authority $31,855,000 principal amount of its 2007 Water Pollution Control System Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series A and $33,955,000 principal amount of its 2007 Water Pollution
Control System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series B (Forward Delivery). Simultancously, when
the issuance of the Utilities Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, the Utilities Authority and the
Authority entered into a loan agreement dated May 1, 2007. Payment of the principal and
interest on the Bonds are further secured by a full, unconditional and irrevocable guaranty of the
County of Bergen, New Jersey.

Series 2008 Bonds

In April 2008, the Authority issued $29,600,000 principal amount of County of Bergen
Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series 2008. The bonds were issued to make a loan to Bergen
County Utilities Authority for the purpose of financing (i) the cost of various improvements to
the Utilities Authority water pollution control system; (ii) capitalized interest on the bonds; and
(iii) the payment of certain costs of issuing the bonds.

To evidence its obligation to repay such loan, the Utilities Authority has issued and delivered to
the Bergen County Improvement Authority $29,600,000 principal amount of its 2008 Water
Pollution Control System Revenue Bonds. Simultaneously with the issuance of the Utilities
Authority Bonds, the Utilities Authority and the Authority entered into a Loan Agreement setting
forth the rights and obligations of the parties thereto. Payment of the principal and interest on
the Bonds are further secured by a full, unconditional and irrevocable guaranty of the County of
Bergen, New Jersey.
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CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

G. Series 2009 Bonds

In February 2009, the Authority issued $7,095,000 principal amount of County of Bergen
Guaranteed Governmental Loan Revenue Bonds. The bonds are serial bonds that bear interest
at various rates between 2.00% and 4.11% and have a final maturity of August 15, 2024. These
bonds were issued to provide funds to make a loan to the Northwest Bergen County Utilities
Authority to (1) finance various improvements to the Northwest Bergen County Utilities
Authority’s sewer system; (2) fund capitalized interest on the Series 2009 Bonds; and (3) pay
certain costs of issuance of the Series 2009 Bonds. The Series 2009 Bonds will be payable from
and are secured by payments made on Revenue Bonds of the Northwest Bergen County Utilities
Authority. The Northwest Bergen County Utilities Authority Bonds will be sold to the Authority
pursuant to a Bond Purchase Agreement entered into between the Bergen County Improvement
Authority and the Northwest Bergen County Utilities Authority. As additional security for the
Series 2009 Bonds, payment of the principal and interest on the Series 2009 Bonds is fully,
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the County of Bergen, New Jersey.

In June 2009, the Author{ty issued $26,944,000 principal amount of County of Bergen
Guaranteed Loan Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A. The bonds are serial bonds that bear interest
at various rates between 1.50% and 5.00% and have a final maturity of August 15, 2024.

The Bonds were issued to provide funds to make loans to the Borough of Fairview in the County
of Bergen, New Jersey (“Fairview”), the Borough of Little Ferry in the County of Bergen, New
Jersey (“Little Ferry™), the Borough of Upper Saddle River in the County of Bergen, New Jersey
(“Upper Saddle River”), the Village of Ridgefield Park in the County of Bergen, New Jersey
{“Ridgefield Park™), the Borough of Edgewater in the County of Bergen, New Jersey
(*“Edgewater”), the Haworth Board of Education in the Borough of Haworth, County of Bergen,
New Jersey (“Haworth BOE”), and the Borough of Rutherford in the County of Bergen, New
Jersey (“Rutherford” and together with Fairview, Little Ferry, Upper Saddle River, Ridgefield
Park, Edgewater and Haworth BOE, the “Borrowers™) to (i) refund certain outstanding bonds of
Fairview, Little Ferry, Upper Saddle River, Ridgefield Park, Edgewater and Haworth BOE,; (ii)
finance certain projects in Edgewater and Rutherford; and (iii) pay certain costs of issuance of
the Bonds and Borrower Bonds.

The Bonds constitute direct and special obligations of the Authority and are secured only by
those revenues of the Authority which are derived by the Authority from the loan repayments
(the “Loan Repayments™) made by the Borrowers pursuant to the general obligation bond of each
Borrower purchased by the Authority pursuant to each Bond Purchase Agreement between the
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CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

G. Series 2009 Bonds, (continued)

Authority and each Borrower, to evidence each respective loan from the Authority to such
Borrower. The Loan Repayments made pursuant to the Borrower Bonds are pledged by the
Authority for the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the
Bonds.

The Bonds are further secured by a full, irrevocable and unconditional guaranty from the County
of Bergen, New Jersey to pay, when due, the principal of and interest on the Bonds. The County
has the power and the obligation to cause the levy of ad valorem taxes upon all taxable property
within the County without limitation as to rate or amount for the payment of'its obligations under
the County Guaranty.

In November of 2009, the Authority issued $10,200,000 Revenue Bonds (Yeshivat Noam,
Yeshiva of Bergen County, Inc, Project), Series 2009. The Bonds are initially issued in a single
denomination of $10,200,000. The bond is dated November 9, 2009 and has a final maturity of
December 31, 2034,

The Bonds were issued for the purpose of (1) refinancing existing debt which was originally
incurred to finance or refinance costs of the acquisition, construction, renovation and equipping
of certain of the Borrower’s facilities located in the Borough of Paramus and the Borough of
Bergentfield, County of Bergen and State of New Jersey; and (2) to fund the costs of issuance of
the Bonds. The Authority, the Borrower and TD Bank, N.A. (the Purchaser™), have entered into
a Bond Agreement dated as of November 1, 2009 (the “Agreement”) providing, among other
things, for the making of a loan (the “Loan”) to the Borrower in order to finance the Project. The
Authority, the Borrower and the Purchaser have also executed the Authority’s Assignment dated
November 9, 2009 (the “Assignment™), pursuant to which the Authority has assigned to the
Purchaser, as security for the payment of the Bonds, certain of its rights under the Agreement
{subject to the Authority’s Reserved Rights) and the other loan documents executed by the
Borrower in conjunction with the Agreement, which are made a part of the record of proceedings
(the “Loan Documents™).

The Series 2009 Bonds are secured by a Mortgage and Security Agreement dated November 9,

2009 from the Borrower to the Authority, creating a lien upon the Borrower’s interest in the
premises and certain other collateral.
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CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

H, Series 2010 Bonds

In March of 2010, the Authority issued $20,555,000 County Secured Lease Revenue Bonds,
Series 2010 (Bergen County Community College Building Project). The Bonds consist of
$5,335,000 County Secured Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A and $15,220,000 County
Secured Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B. The Bonds have a final maturity of June 1, 2040
and pay interest semiannually on June 1 and December 1 of each year commencing June 1, 2010,

The Bonds were issued to provide funds for various improvements to the facilities of The Bergen
Community College including (1) the acquisition, reconstruction, alteration and renovation of
a building in the Township of Lyndhurst, New Jersey to be used as a satellite campus for the
College and for financing other capital projects of the College; and (2) the payment of certain
costs of issuance of the Bonds.

The Bonds constitute special obligations of the Authority and are secured primarily by revenues
derived by the Authority from rentals to be paid by the Bergen Community College pursuant to
a lease agreement by and between the Authority and the College dated as of March 1, 2010,

As additional security for the Bonds, payment of principal and interest on the Bonds is fully,
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the County of Bergen, New Jersey pursuant to a
guaranty resolution adopted on August 12, 2009 by the County. The County guarantee shall
remain in effect until the Bonds have been paid in full.

In April of 2010, the Authority issued $17,000,000 County of Bergen Guaranteed Revenue
Bonds, Series 2010 (East Rutherford Project). The Bonds bear interest at various rates between
2.00% and 5.00% and have a final maturity of June 1, 2039.

The Bonds were issued to make a loan to the Borough of East Rutherford in the County of
Bergen, New Jersey for the purpose of financing the cost associated with the construction of a
new police headquarters and municipal court building for use by the Borough and the acquisition
of all materials and equipment and completion of all work related thereto, and to fund certain
costs associated with the issuance of the Bonds.

To evidence its obligation to pay such loan, the Borough issued and delivered to the Authority
$17,000,000 principal amount of its General Obligation Bonds which the Borough shall be
obligated to levy ad valorem taxes upon all taxable property within the Borough for the payment
of principal and interest on the Borough Bonds.
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8. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

H. Series 2010 Bonds, (continued)

Payment of the principal of and interest on the Authority Bonds are further secured by a full,
unconditional and irrevocable guaranty of the County of Bergen, New Jersey.

In April of 2010, the Authority issued $30,165,000 Governmental Loan Revenue Bonds, Series
2010. The Bonds bear interest at various rates between 2.00% and 5.00% payable February 15
and August 15 of each year commencing February 15, 2011 and have a final maturity of 2025.

The Series 2010 Bonds were issued to provide funds to make loans to the Borough of Closter,
the Borough of Fort Lee and the Borough of Oradell to (1) finance general improvements of the
borrowers; (2) refinance certain outstanding bond anticipation notes of the borrowers; and (3)
pay certain costs of issuance of the Series 2010 Bonds.

The Series 2010 Bonds are payable and are secured by payments made on general obligation
bonds of each of the borrowers. The Borrower Bonds were sold to the Authority pursuant to
separate Bond Purchase Agreements enfered into between the Authority and each of the
borrowers. The Borrower Bonds shall be direct and general obligations of each of the Borrowers
payable from ad valorem taxes levied upon all the taxable property within the jurisdiction of each
borrower.

As additional security for the Series 2010 Bonds, payment of the principal and interest on the
Series 2010 Bonds is fully, unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the County of Bergen,
New Jersey which shall remain in effect until the Series 2010 Bonds have been paid in full.

In December 2010, the Authority issued $18,765,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 (Kean
University Foundation, Inc. Project). The Bonds have a final maturity of December 1, 2039 and

pay interest semiannually on June ! and December 1 of each year at various rates between
2.125% and 5.375%.

The Bonds were issued to (1) fund a loan to Kean University Foundation, Inc. that will be used
to pay 50% of the costs of construction of an academic building on the campus of Ocean County
College; (2) fund a portion of the debt service reserve fund; (3) fund a portion of the capitalized
interest on the Bonds; and (4) pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2010 Bonds.
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CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

H. Series 2010 Bonds, {continued)

The Authority and the Foundation have entered into a Loan Agreement, dated as of December 1,
2010, pursuant to which the Authority will lend the proceeds of the Series 2010 Bonds to the
Foundation for the purpose of paying (a) fifty percent (50%) of the Costs of the Project (as
defined in the Bond Resolution), and (b) cots of issuing the Series 2010 Bonds. The Project shall
be constructed on a portion of an approximately 34 acre site owned by the County College. The
Foundation and the County College have entered into a Ground Lease, dated as of September 21,
2010, whereby the Foundation will lease fifty percent (50%) of the Building Footprint from the
County College,

The Foundation and the County College have entered into the Gateway Building Ownership and
Operating Agreement, dated as of September 21, 2010 (the “Operating Agreement”), governing
the construction, ownership and operation of the Gateway Building, which provides that each
party will finance fifty percent (50%) of the costs associated with the construction of the
Gateway Building, and any other costs incurred for the Project, and each party will own a fifty
percent (50%) interest in the Gateway Building. Operating costs and related improvements of
the Gateway Building will be equally paid by the County College and the Foundation. The
Foundation will lease its interest in the Gateway Building to the University pursuant to a Lease
Agreement, dated as of September 21, 2010, as amended and restated {collectively, the “Lease
Agreement”), as permitted by the Operating Agreement, Payments by the University to the
Foundation under the Lease Agreement, and the contingent guaranty thereunder, shall be
sufficient to cover the debt service payments for the Series 2010 Bonds and operating costs.
Both the Lease Agreement and the Ground Lease will be assigned to the Authority as additional
security for the 2010 Bonds. In addition, a Ground Leasehold Mortgage and Assignment of
Lease, dated as of December 1, 2010 (the “Mortgage”) will be granted by the Foundation to the
Authority to secure the Foundation’s obligations under the Loan Agreement,

Series 2012 Bonds

In May 2012, the Authority issued $19,410,000 County Guaranteed Loan Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Taxable Series 2012 (Pooled ERI Unfunded Liability Project — Federally Taxable). The
Bonds bear interest at vatious rates between .430% and 3.259% and have a final maturity of
September 15, 2023,
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CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued}

I

Series 2012 Bonds, (continued)

The Refunding Bonds were issued to provide funds to make aloan to the County of Bergen, New
Jersey (the "County") and certain municipalities and school districts in the County (together with
the County, the "Series 2012 Local Units") (i) to fund an escrow the proceeds of which are to be
used for the purpose of advance refunding a portion of the Authority's County Guaranteed
Governmental Loan Revenue Bonds, Taxable Series 2003A (Pooled ERI Unfunded Liability
Project) originally issued in the aggregate principal amount of $31,210,000 (the "Refunded
Bonds"), which Refunded Bonds were issued to provide funds to make loans to the Series 2012
Local Units to raise funds sufficient to retire the present value of the Series 2012 Local Units'
respective unfunded accrued liability for early retirement incentive benefits previously granted
by the State to each Series 2012 Local Unit, and (ii) to pay certain of the costs of issuance of the
Refunding Bonds and the Series 2012 Local Unit Refunding Bonds (as hereinafter defined).

The Refunding Bonds are payable from and are secured by payments made on general obligation
refunding bonds of each of the Series 2012 Local Units (each a "Series 2012 Local Unit
Refunding Bond" and, collectively, the "Series 2012 Local Unit Refunding Bonds"). The Series
2012 Local Unit Refunding bonds were sold to the Authority pursuant to separate Bond Purchase
Agreements entered into between the Authority and each of the Series 2012 Local Units. The
Series 2012 Local Unit Refunding Bonds shall be direct and general obligations of each of the
Series 2012 Local Units.

In August 2012, the Authority issued $18,450,000 County Guaranteed School District Revenue
Bonds (Fort Lee Board of Education Project) Series 2012, The Bonds bear interest at various
rates between 1.25% and 4.00% and have a final maturity of December 1, 2031,

The proceeds thereof were used to make a loan to the Board of Education of the Borough of Fort
Lee, in the County of Bergen, a school district of the State of New Jersey, for the purpose of (i)
financing the School Project; and (it) paying the costs of issuance with respect to the issuance
and sale of the 2012 Bonds.
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8. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

L

Series 2012 Bonds, (continued)

To evidence its obligation to repay such 2012 Loan, the Borrower and the Authority entered into
a Loan Agreement, dated as of August 16, 2012, setting forth the rights and obligations 6f the
parties thereto. In order to secure and evidence its payment obligations under the Loan
Agreement, the Borrower has delivered or will deliver, to secure the repayment obligation under
the Loan Agreement, its general obligation bond under which it irrevocably pledges its full faith
and credit for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Board Bond, which Board Bond
is additionally secured by the New Jersey School Bond Reserve Act, 1980 N.J. Laws ¢, 72, as
amended.

In August 2012, the Authority issued $14,970,000 County Guaranteed Refunding Bonds
(Englewood Board of Education Refunding Project) Series 2012. The Bonds bear interest at
various rates between 1,50% and 5,00% and have a final maturity of April 1, 2024,

The Refunding Bonds were issued to: (i) advance refund and redeem $15,360,000 of the
Authority's County of Bergen Guaranteed School District Revenue Bonds, Series 2004
(Englewood City Board of Education Project) maturing on April 1 in the years 2015 through
2024, inclusive, which 2004 Refunded Bonds are callable on April 1, 2014; and (ii) pay certain
costs and expenses incidental to the issuance, sale and delivery of the Refunding Bonds. The
principal of and interest on the Refunding Bonds shalt be secured by the pledge of the Trust
Estate (as defined in the Bond Resolution) by the Authority to the Trustee, which Trust Estate
shall include, among other things: a portion of the loan payments made by the Board of
Education of the City of Englewood, in the County of Bergen, New Jersey, pursuant to an
Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, dated as of September 6, 2012 by and between the
Authority and the Board of Education, which Loan Payments are secured by a General
Obligation Bond issued by the Board of Education to the Authority dated July 14, 2004, as
amended on the date of delivery of the Refunding Bonds. Payment of the School District Bond
shall be made from the levy of ad valorem taxes upon all the taxable property within the
jurisdiction of the School District, without limitation as to rate or amount, and which Loan
Payments shall be assigned by the Authority to the Trustee for the payment of the principal
(including sinking fund payments, if any) of and interest on the Refunding Bonds in accordance
with the terms of the Bond Resolution and the Amended and Restated Loan Agreement,
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8. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, {(continued)

1.

Series 2012 Bonds, (continued)

In August 2012, the Authority issued $10,515,000 of County Guaranteed Refunding Revenue
Bonds, Series 2012 (Fair Lawn Community Center, Inc. Project). The Bonds bear interest at
various rates between 1.50% and 5.00% and have a final maturity of September 15, 2034,

The Refunding Bonds were issued to (i) advance refund $10,115,000 outstanding principal
amount of County of Bergen Guaranteed Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 (Fair Lawn Community
Center, Inc. Project) maturing on September 15, in the years 2015 through 2021, inclusive, 2025
and 2034 (the "Refunded Bonds"); and (ii) pay certain costs of issuing the Refunding Bonds. The
Refunded Bonds were issued to make a loan to the Fair Lawn Community Center, Inc. for the
purpose of financing (a) the construction and equipping of an approximately 42,000 square foot
recreational and community center, located in the Borough of Fair Lawn, New Jersey; and (b)
the payment of certain costs of issuing the Refunded Bonds. To evidence its obligation to repay
such loan and secure the Refunding Bonds, the Borrower and the Authority entered into a First
Amendment to Loan Agreement dated as of September 1, 2012, setting forth the rights and
obligations of the parties thereto. The Borough will make payments under the First Amendment
to Lease Agreement dated as of September 1, 2012 between the Borough and the Borrower in
amounts sufficient to enable the Borrower to meet its payment obligations under the Amended
Loan Agreement. Payment of the principal of (including sinking fund payments, if any) and
interest on the Refunding Bonds are further secured by a full, unconditional and irrevocable
guaranty of the County of Bergen, New Jersey.”

Series 2013 Municipal Banc Leasing Program

In October 2013 the Bergen County Improvement Authority entered into a Master Tease
Purchase Agreement with the Bank of America Public Capital Corp. to provide financing in the
amount not to exceed $15,000,000, which includes the full faith and credit guarantee of the
County of Bergen.

The program provides tax-exempt lease {inancing for various local governments which includes
municipalities, school districts, utility authorities and sewerage authorities in the County of
Bergen in order to fund for certain capital equipment and other personal or real property.

Under the program the Authority enters into a sublease with participants, whereby the participant
would make lease payments under the sublease. Upon the expiration of the lease term, the
Authority sells the capital items financed thereby to the participant for $1,
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CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

K. Series 2014 Bonds Pooled Loan Revenue Bonds Series A &B

On April 30,2014, the Authority issued $10,125,000 County Guaranteed Pooled Loan Revenue
Bonds, Series 2014A and $59,995,000 County Guaranteed Pooled Loan Revenue Bonds, Series
20148, The Bonds bear interest at various rates between 2.00% and 5.00% and have final
maturity of February 15, 2039.

The Series 2014 Bonds were issued to provide funds to make loans to the County of Bergen (the
"County™), the Bergen County Utilities Authority (the "Utilities Authority Borrower"), and the
Borough of East Rutherford, New Jersey (the "Municipal Borrower") and together with the
County and the Utilities Authority Borrower, (the "Borrowers") to (i) advance refund certain
outstanding bonds of the Utilities Authority Borrower; (11} permanently finance certain general
improvements of the Borrowers; and (it1) pay certain of the costs of issuance of the Series 2014
Bonds, and the Borrower Bonds.

Series 2014 School District Revenue Bonds

In July 2014, the Authority issued $30,565,000 County Guaranteed School District Revenue
Bonds (Elmwood Park Board of Education Project), Series 2014. The Bonds bear interest at
various rates between 1,00% and 5.00% and have final maturity of August 1, 2034,

The Series 2014 Bonds were issued to provide funds to make a loan to the Elmwood Park Board
of Education (the "Borrower"). The Borrower is using the proceeds of the bonds (i) to make
improvements to the Board's Schools in Elmwood Park, NJ; (ii) to currently refund the Board's
2004 School Bonds outstanding in the amount of $23,382,000 maturing on or after
August 1,2015; and (iii) pay certain costs of issuance of the Series 2014 Bonds.

. Series 2015 County Guaranteed Revenue Bonds (Felician Services, Inc.)

On September 17,2015, the Authority issued $30,000,000 Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 (Felician
Services, Inc.). The proceeds of the sale of the Series 2015 Bonds will be loaned by the
Authority to Felician Services, Inc. The Bonds are being issued to (i) pay all or a portion of the
costs of the project consisting of financing various capital improvements at the Lodi, New Jersey
campus and at the Rutherford, New Jersey campus of the College, (it} to pay all or a portion of
the costs of refinancing/restructuring the Borrower's outstanding New Jersey Educational
Facilities Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Felician College Issue, Series I, (iii) to pay the
termination fee on swap entered into at the time of issuance of the 2006 Bonds, (iv) to pay off
aline of credit to the College that was used to finance various capital projects of the College, and
(v) to pay certain costs associated within the issuance of the bonds.
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CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

M. Series 2015 County Guaranteed Revenue Bonds (Felician Services, Ine.), (continued)

To evidence its obligation to repay the loan, the Borrower issued to the Authority its Promissory
Note, Series 2015-1, dated September 17,2015, in the principal amount of $30,000,000 pursuant
to the loan agreement.

Series 2016 County of Bergen Guaranteed Governmental 1.oan Revenue Bonds

In March of 2016, the Authority issued $49,580,000 principal amount of County Guaranteed
Governmental Loan Revenue Bonds, Series 2016, The Bonds are serial bonds that bear interest
in varying rates from 2.00% to 5.00% and have a final maturity of August 15, 2037,

‘The Bonds are being issued to provide funds to make loans to the Borough of North Arlington,
in the County of Bergen, New Jersey (“North Arlington”), the Borough of Ridgefield, in the
County of Bergen, New Jersey (“Ridgefield”), and the Borough of Rutherford, in the County of
Bergen, New Jersey (“Rutherford” and together with North Arlington and Ridgefield, the
“Municipal Borrowers™), and the Bergen County Utilities Authority, County of Bergen, New
Jersey (the “BCUA”; and together with the Municipal Borrowers, the “Borrowers™) to (I) refund
certain outstanding bonds of the Borrowers; and (i) pay certain costs of issuance of the Bonds
and the Borrower Bonds.

Series 2016C County of Bergen Guaranteed Governmental Loan Revenue Bonds

In October of 2016, the Authority issued $65,150,000 principal amount of County Guaranteed
Governmental Loan Revenue Bonds, Series 2016C, The Bonds are serial bonds that bear interest
in varying rates from 2.00% to 5.00% and have a final maturity of August 15, 2026,

The Bonds are being issued to provide funds to make loans to the County of Bergen, New Jersey,
the Borough of Edgewater, New Jersey, the Borough of Fort Lee, New Jersey, and the Northwest
Bergen County Utilities Authority, County of Bergen, New Jersey to (i) refund certain
outstanding bonds of the Borrowers; and (i) pay certain costs of issuance of the Bonds and the
Borrower Bonds.

Pursuant to the Bond Purchase Agreements, and in accordance with applicable law, each of'the
Borrowers will issue and sell its Borrower Bond to the Authority in the principal amounts shown
below. The Borrower Bonds will be purchased by the Authority and the Loan Repayments will
be pledged by the Authority to secure the Bonds.
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CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

P. Series 2016 Countv Guaranteed Revenue Bonds (CAP Project)

InDecember 02016, the Authority issued $13,380,000 principal amount of County Guaranteed
Revenue Bonds (CAP Project), Series 2016, The Bonds are serial bonds that bear interest in
varying rates from 2.00% to 5.00% and have a final maturity of December 1, 2046,

The 2016 Bonds are being issued by the Authorify and the proceeds from the sale thereof are
being used by the Authority fo provide a loan fo the Greater Bergen Community Action, Inc. for
the purpose of: (a) paying the costs of the construction of new classroom facilities and parking
lot improvements; (b) financing improvements for the development of an early childhood
education school for low-income children at the Borrower’s facility at 529 Midland Avenue in
Garfield, New Jersey and the acquisition of real property and facility improvements thereon to
be used for non-profit direct-client service activities and administrative purposes, located at 392
Main Street, in Hackensack, New Jersey ((a) and (b} being referred to as the “Project™); (¢)
refinancing and defeasing all of the Authority’s outstanding County Guaranteed Revenue Bonds
(Bergen County Community Action Program, Inc. Project), Series 2004A and all of the
Authority’s outstanding County Guaranteed Revenue Bonds (Bergen County Community Action
Partnership, Inc. Project), Series 2011; (d) funding capitalized interest on the 2016A Bonds
related to the Project; (e) funding of working capital to provide transition funds until the Project
is placed in service; (f) funding of a bond reserve fund for the 2016 A Bonds; and (g) payment
of certain costs incidental to the issuance and sale of the 2016 Bonds.

Series 2017C County Guaranteed Governmental Loan Revenue Bonds

During 2017, the Authority issued $32,680,000 principal amount of County Guaranteed
(Governmental Loan Revenue Bonds, Series 2017. The Bonds bear interest in varying rates from
2.00% to 4.00% and have a final maturity of February 15, 2030,

The Bonds are being issued to provide funds to make loans to the Township of Lyndhurst, New
Jersey (“Lyndhurst”), the Borough of Oradell, New Jersey (“Oradell”, and together with
Lyndhurst, the “Municipal Borrowers”), and the Bergen County Utilities Authority, County of
Bergen, New Jersey (the “BCUA?”, and together with the Municipal Borrowers, the “Borrowers™)
to (i) refund certain outstanding bonds of the Borrowers; and (ii) pay certain costs of issuance
of the Bonds.
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8. CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

Q. Series 2017C County Guaranteed Governmental Loan Revenue Bonds, (continued)

The Bonds constitute special obligations of the Authority and are secured only by those revenues
of the Authority which are derived by the Authority from the loan repayments (the “Loan
Repayments™) made by the Borrowers pursuant to the general obligation bond of each Municipal
Borrower purchased by the Authority (collectively, the “Municipal Bonds™) and a revenue bond
ofthe BCUA purchased by the Authority (the “BCUA Bonds”, and together with the Municipal
Bonds, the “Borrower Bonds™) pursuant to each Bond Purchase Agreement between the
Authority and each Borrower (collectively, the “Bond Purchase Agreements™), to evidence each
respective loan from the Authority to such Borrower. The Loan Repayments made pursuant to
the Borrower Bonds are pledged by the Authority for the payment of the principal of, redemption
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds.

The Bonds are further secured by a full, irrevocable and unconditional guaranty (the “County
Guaranty”) from the County of Bergen, New Jersey (the “County™), to pay, when due, the
principal of and interest on the Bonds. The County has the power and the obligation, if
necessary, to cause the levy of ad valorem taxes upon all taxable property within the County
without limitation as to rate or amount for the payment of the principal of and interest on the
Bonds.

9, LONG-TERM DEBT

COUNTY_ GUARANTEED TAXABLE PROJECT BONDS (BERGEN REGIONAL
MEDICAL CENTER PROJECT), SERIES 2010

On August 5, 2010, the Authority issued $17,925,000 of County Guaranteed Taxable Project Bonds,
Series 2010, The Series 2010 Bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 1.414% to 3.532% and have
a final maturity of March 15, 2017. The proceeds of the Series 2010 Bonds were used to refund
$16,270,000 of the Authority's outstanding County Guaranteed Taxable Project Bonds, Series 2000.
The refunding resulted in a deferred loss (difference between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the old debt) of $915,597. This difference, reported in the accompanying financial
statements as a deferred outflow of resources, is being amortized over the life of the bonds using the
straight-line method.
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LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued)

COUNTY GUARANTEED TAXABLE PROJECT BONDS (BERGEN REGIONAL
MEDICAL CENTER PROJECT), SERIES 2010, (continued)

A summary of the activity for the Authority's County Guaranteed Taxable Project Bonds, Series 2010
is presented below: '

Balance Balance
December 31 Refunded/ December 31,
2016 Issued Retired 2017

$1,165.000 $ -0- $1.165,000 $ -0-

As of December 31, 2017, the County Guaranteed Taxable Project Bonds (Bergen Regional Medical
Center Project), Series 2010 have been redeemed.

COUNTY_GUARANTEED TAXABLE REVENUE BONDS (OVERPECK PROJECT),
SERIES 2005

On September 8, 2005, the Authority issued County-Guaranteed Taxable Revenue Bonds, Series
2005, in the amount of $12,000,000. The bonds have a final maturity date of September 15, 2020 and
bear interest rates ranging from 4.80% to 5.375%. The proceeds of the Series 2005 Bonds will be
used, together with other available funds to pay: (1) the principal and interest on the Authority's 2004
Notes at maturity and (2) certain costs incidental to the issuance of the Series 2005 Bonds. The 2004
Notes were issued to pay the Authority's 2003 Notes at maturity, the proceeds of which were used to
finance a capital improvement program for the Overpeck Project (Described further in Note 12 to the
financial statements). The Bonds are direct and special obligations of the Authority payable solely
from the revenues (as defined in the Trust Indenture dated as of September 1, 2005 between the
Authority and the Trustee. The Bonds are further secured by a full, irrevocable and unconditional
guaranty from the County of Bergen, New Jersey.

A summary for the activity for the Authority's County Guaranteed Taxable Revenue Bonds Series
2005 is presented below:

Balance Balance
December 31 Refunded/ December 31,
2016 Issued Retired 2017
$4.325.000 $§ -0 $1.005.000 $3,320,000
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LONG-TERM DEBT, {continued)

COUNTY_GUARANTEED TAXABLE REVENUE BONDS (OVERPECK PROJECT),
SERIES 2005

The maturities of the County Guaranteed Taxable Revenue Bonds (Overpeck Project) are as follows:

Original Original Maturity Maturity Balance
Description Issue Date Issue Amount Rate(%0} Date Amount Dec, 31,2017
Series Bonds 09/08/05 $12,000,000 4.850% 9/15/2018 1,055,000
4,900% 9/15/2019 1,105,000
5.020% 9/15/2020 1,160,000
$3,320,000
Increased by:
Unamortized Premium 28.044
Net Carrying Amount of Debt $3.348.944
Cuirent Portion of Bonds Payable 1,055,000
Long Term Portion of Bonds Payable 2.293.944
$3.348.944

Revenue Bonds

Revenue Bonds outstanding at December 31, 2017 and 2016, consist of the following:

017 2016

General Fund and Bergen Regional Medical Center
$17,925,000 County Guaranteed Taxable Project Bonds, Series
2010, 3.532%, $1,163,000 due on May 15, 2017 $ -0 $1.165.000
Analysis of Balance
General Fund -0- 24,115
Bergen Regional Medical Center -0- 1,140,885

§ -0- $1,165.000
Overpeck Landfill
$12,000,000 County Guaramieed Taxable Revenue Bonds, Series
20035, 4.80% to 5.375%, due in annual installments of $1,005,000
to $1,160,000 on September 15, 2018 to 2020 $3.320.000 $4.325.000
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LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued)

COUNTY GUARANTEED TAXABLE REVENUE BONDS (OVERPECK PROJECT),
SERIES 2005, (continued)

The Authority's schedule of principal and interest requirements for long-term debt issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2017 is as follows:

Years Ending Project/Revenue Bonds
December 31 Principal Interest Total
2018 $1,055,000 $163,545 $1,218,545
2019 1,105,000 112,376 1,217,376
2020 1.160.000 58.232 1,218,232
$3.320.000 $334.153 $3.654,153

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The Authority's long-term liability activity for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as
follows:

General Fand
Balance Balance Due
Jamuary 1, December 31, Within
2017 2017 Additions Deductions 2017 One Year
Project Bonds $24,115 $ -0- ($24,115) $ -0- $ -0-
Less: Issuance Discounts (344) Q- 344 -0- -0-
Total Bonds Payable $23.771 3 -0- {$23.771) § -0- $ -0-
Balance Balance Due
January I, December 31, Within
2016 2016 Additions Deductions 2016 One Year
Project Bonds $81,971 $ -0- ($57,856) $24,115 $24,115
Less: Issuance Discounts (688) -0~ 344 (344) -Q-
Total Bonds Payable $81,283 3 -0- {857,512) $23.771 $24,115
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D

LONG-TERM DEBT, (continued)

Bergen Regional Medical Center

)

a1

A

|

Revenue Bonds
Less: Issuance Discounts

Total Bonds Payable

b2

01

N

Revenue Bonds
Less: Issnance Discounts

Total Bonds Payable

Overpeck Landfill

D

01

~1

Revenue Bonds
Plus; Issuance Premiums

Total Bonds Payable

201

N

Revenue Bonds
Plus: Issuance Premiums

Total Bonds Payable

ECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)
Balance Balance Due
Januoary 1, December 31, Within
2017 . Additions Deductions 2017 One Year
$1,140,885 $ -0- ($1,140,885) $ -0- $ -0-
{16,300 -0- 16,300 -0- -{)-
$1,124,585 $ -0- ($1.124.585) £ -0- $_-0-
Balance Balance Due
January 1, December 31, Within
2016 Additions Deductions 2016 One Year
$3,878,029 $ -0- ($2,737,144) $1,140,885 $1,140,885
(32,601 -0- 16,301 (16,300}
$3.845,428 $ -0- ($2,720,843) $1,124.585 $1,140.885
Balance Balance Due
January 1, December 31, Within
2017 Additions Peductions 2017 One Year
$4,325,000 5 -0- ($1,005,000) $3,320,000 $1,055,000
39,630 -0- (10.686) 28944
$4.364.630 £ -0- {$1.015.686) $3.348.944 $1.055.000
Balance Balance Due
January 1, December 31, Within
2016 Additions Deductions 2016 One Year
$5,285,000 $ -0- {$960,000) $4,325,000 $1,005,000
50,317 -0- (10.687) 39.630
$5.335.317 § -0- ($970,687) $4.364.630 $1,005.000

“55.




10.

11.

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

- PROJECT NOTES PAYABLE

On September 1, 2017, the Authority issued $74,935,000 principal amount of County Guaranteed
Project Notes (Medical Center Project), Series 2017 consisting of $54,950,000 County Guaranteed
Project Note, Series 2017A and $19,985,000 County Guaranteed Project Note, Series 2017B. The
Notes are being issued to provide funding for various capital improvements, equipment and working
capital for the Medical Center and paying the cost of issuance of the Notes. The Notes have an
interest rate of 2.25% and mature on March 1, 2019. Interest on the Notes is payable on March 1 and
September 1, commencing March 1, 2018 until maturity.

Additionally during 2017, the Authority issued $8,500,000 principal amount of County Guaranteed
Project Notes (Emerson/Oradell Land Acquisition Project), Series 2017. These Notes are being
issued to provide funds for the acquisition of approximately 135 acres of land within the Boroughs
of Emerson and Oradell in the County of Bergen, and paying the cost of issuance of the Notes. The
Notes have an interest rate of 2.50% and mature on December 12, 2018.

A summary of the Authority's Project Notes for the year ended December 31, 2017 is as follows:

Balance Balance Due
Jan, 1, Dec. 31, Within
Medical Center 2017 Issued Retired 2017 One Year
Project Notes $ -0- $74,935,000 $ -0- $74,935,000 $ -0-
Golf Course
Project Notes -0 8,500,000 -0- 8,500,000 8,500,000
Total Bonds Payable $ -0- $83,435,000 -0- $83,435,000 $8.500,000
MEDICAL CENTER
The Medical Center

The Medical Center is a Medicaid/Medicare certified safety-net facility that was founded by the
County in 1916 as a hospital for contagious diseases (e.g., polio and tuberculosis). Over time, its
programs and services have changed and its facilities have expanded in response to the changing
health care needs of County residents. The Medical Center was previously operated pursuant to a
license issued to the County by the State of New Jersey Department of Health and Senior Services.

However, as of March 15, 1998, the Medical Center has been operated pursuant to a license issued
to the Authority. Today, the Medical Center offers a variety of inpatient and outpatient services that
are arranged under three primary service categories: behavioral health care, long-term care and acute

-56-




11.

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

MEDICAL CENTER, (continued)
The Medical Center, (continued)

care. Within each of these are a number of clinical programs. The Medical Center is currently
licensed for 323 behavioral health beds, 574 long-term care beds and 173 acute care beds (comprised
of 164 medical/surgical beds and 9 ICU/CCU beds). The vast majority of the Medical Center
outpatient services are delivered on the main campus located in Paramus, a suburban community in
the County, although efforts have been made to work with a number of community groups in
expanding the Medical Center outpatient programs to off-site locations.

The Medical Center's real property includes a 60-acre parcel of land. The Medical Center is easily
accessible from the Garden State Parkway and from Route 17. The Medical Center's physical plant
consists of thirteen buildings aggregating almost 940,000 net square feet, all of which are located
within the 60-acre site, Parking for approximately 1,175 cars is provided in surface lots, most of
which are available for visitors and patients as well as for the Medical Center staff. Since 1998, the
County has invested in various capital improvements pertaining to all major clinical activities at the
Medical Center. Inaddition to routine capital replacements, a number of significant construction and
modernization projects have been completed during that time period.

County/Authority Lease Agreement and Authority Sublease, Lease and Operating Agreements

The County executed a Lease and Agreement, dated December 17, 1997 (the “County/Authority
Agreement”), with the Authority, pursuant to which the County transferred the license for the
operation of the Medical Center to the Authority, conveyed to the Authority a 19-year leasehold
interest in the Medical Center, and delegated to the Authority the responsibility for managing,
administering, operating and maintaining the Medical Center. The Authority thereupon executed a
Lease and Operating Agreement, dated December 17, 1997, as amended and supplemented
(collectively the “1997 Authority Lease and Operating Agreement”) with Solomon Health Group,
L.L.C. (“Solomon™), pursuant to which the Authority conveyed to Solomon a 19-year sub-leasehold
interest in the Medical Center and delegated to Solomon the day to day responsibility for managing,
administering, operating and maintaining, at its sole expense (except for capital improvements) and
for and on behalf of the Authority and as its agent, the Medical Center. The County/Authority
Agreement and the 1997 Authority Lease and Operating Agreement each became effective on
March 15, 1998. Solomon thereupon assigned its interest in the 1997 Authority Lease and Operating
Agreement to arelated entity, Bergen Regional Medical Center, L.P. (the “Manager”), which assumed
all of Solomon's rights and obligations under the Authority Lease and Operating Agreement. Under
such Assignment, Solomon remained a guarantor of such entity's performance thereunder.
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MEDICAL CENTER, (continued)

County/Authority Lease Agreement and Authority Sublease, L.ease and Operating Agreements,
(continued)

The original expiration date of the 1997 Authority Lease and Operating Agreement of March 14,
2017, was extended by way of an amendment to the 1997 Authority Lease and Operating Agreement
to September 30, 2017. By way of separate agreement, the accounts receivable loan repayment by
the Manager to the Authority, with an original maturity date of March 2020, was accelerated to
December 31,2017, with a corresponding discount and reduction in the principal and accrued interest
due and owing by the Manager on the accounts receivable loan, so that the total amount due and
owing on the accounts receivable loan was $22,500,000. Payments by the Manager on the accounts
receivable loan commenced on February 5, 2017 and all amounts due and owing to the Authority
were paid by the Manager by the maturity date of December 31, 2017.

On July 14, 2017, the County and the Authority signed an agreement {the “2017 Lease Agreement”)
for the lease of the Medical Center real property and business assets from the County to the Authority,
with a lease term of nineteen (19) years. On the same date, the Authority entered into a Sublease,
Lease and Operating Agreement (the “2017 Sublease Agreement”), with Care Plus Bergen, Inc. in
partnership with its third party-operators, Care Plus NJ (a longtime provider of outpatient mental-
health services in northern New Jersey), Integrity House (a Newark-based provider of substance abuse
treatment) and Rutgers Biomedical and Health Sciences to operate the Medical Center on October 1,
2017. The term of the 2017 Sublease Agreement is nineteen (19) years and is coterminous with the
2017 Lease Agreement. The Authority will continue to hold the license for the operations of the
Medical Center and as a result, all cash receipts related to patient service revenue generated by Care
Plus Bergen, Inc. will be collected by the Authority. The Authority will retain ninety percent (90%)
of the revenues after expenses; the remainder of which will be remitted to Care Plus Bergen, Inc.

FUTURE CAPITAL PROJECTS

Certain types of capital projects of the Hospital will be the responsibility of the County or the
Authority, under the terms of the Lease Agreement. Various capital projects are presently in progress
funded by appropriations of the County. The Authority has engaged a Construction Manager to
oversee all the capital projects at the Hospital. Additionally, a reserve is being established which is
being contributed to by both the County and the Manager to finance certain joint projects in the
future. Project requests for the year 2017 are being prepared by the Hospital for review by the
Authority and the County.
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EMERSON/ORADELL LAND ACQUISITION PROJECT

As described in Note 10, the Authority has issued notes to fund the purchase of certain real property,
approximately 135 acres of which are located within the Boroughs of Emerson and Oradell, in the
County of Bergen. The real property is currently the site of the Emerson Golf Club, a private 18-hole
golf course, as well as other undeveloped parcels.

The Authority intends to lease the Property to the County pursuant to a Lease Agreement with the
County (the “Lease Agreement™). The County intends to continue to use the Property as a County
run 18-hole golf course.

LITIGATION

We are advised by the Authority’s Counsel of the following matters:

Bergen County Improvement Authority v. Bergen Regional Medical Center, L.P
Docket No.: BER-C-314-16

The litigation involved an Order to Show Cause filed by the Bergen County Improvement Authority
making a request for the court to compel the manager/operator of Bergen Regional Medical enter to
provide documentation and access to personnel needed in connection with public bid and transition
efforts involving further management/operation of Bergen Regional Medical Center. This litigation
has been resolved by Consent Order filed on January 17, 2017, without any financial obligation on
behalf of Bergen County Improvement Authority.

BRMCLP v. the BCIA — Federal Lawsuit

On November 30, 2017, Bergen Regional Medical Center, LP (“BRMCLP”) filed a federal action
againstthe Bergen County Improvement Authority (the “BCIA”) alleging, among other things, breach
of contract and making false statements to effectively fraudulently induce BRMCLP to enter into a
contractual arrangement. Accordingly, BRMCLP secks payment of funds allegedly owed under its
agreements with the BCIA, an order voiding certain agreements between the parties, and
compensatory and punitive damages as the court sees fit, The Complaint alleges the damages exceed
$28 million. In response, the BCIA moved to dismiss the matter based upon a provision in the
agreements between the parties requiring such litigation to be filed in New Jersey Superior Court
rather than federal court. That motion to dismiss is currently pending and has yet to be scheduled for
any oral argument (if permitted by the court). If the motion is granted, we anticipate the litigation will
be refiled and litigated in New Jersey Superior Court. The parties have yet to participate in any
discovery given the pending motion.
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LITIGATION, (continued)

Progressive Health Care, LLC

On October 2, 2017, Progressive Health Care LLC filed a New Jersey Tort Claims Act Notice of
Claim. The Notice included Bergen County Improvement Authority and Bergen County as potential
defendants.

The potential claimant is a for-profit corporation that is a disappointed bidder in a contract to lease
and operate the hospital now known as New Bridge Medical Center. The Notice alleges, among other
things, that in awarding the contract to Care Plus Bergen, Inc., a non-profit corporation, defendants
unlawfully watved requirements of the Request for Proposal (RFP) and provided misleading or false
information. The Notice alleges $215,848,830.25 in expenses and losses, Of that amount,
$215,630,012 is attributed to lost profits over the 19-year life of the contract.

No answer to the Notice is required and no litigation has been filed to date, Due to the ambiguous
allegations in the Notice of Claim and the absence of any complaint, any discussion of potential loss

or available insurance would be speculative.

BCMC, L1.C

On December 28, 2017, Bergen County Medical Center, LL.C filed a New Jersey Tort Claims Act
Notice of Claim. The Notice included Bergen County Improvement Authority and Bergen County
as potential defendants.

The potential claimant is a for-profit corporation that is a disappointed bidder in a contract to lease
and operate the hospital now known as New Bridge Medical Center, The Notice alleges, among other
things, that in awarding the contract to Care Plus Bergen, Inc., a non-profit corporation, defendants
unlawfully waived requirements of the Request for Proposal (RFP) and provided misleading or false
information. The Notice alleges $313,359,651.15 in expenses and losses. Of that amount,
$312,701,800 is attributed to lost profits over the 19-year life of the contract.

No answer to the Notice is required and no litigation has been filed to date. Due to the ambiguous
allegations in the Notice of Claim and the absence of any complaint, any discussion of potential loss
or available insurance would be speculative.,

CONTRIBUTIONS

Various expenses are paid by the County of Bergen on behalf of the Hospital including capital
improvements which are recorded as capital contributions and medical insurance costs applicable to
retired employees which are recorded as operating conftributions. Capital and operating contributions
recorded in the Hospital Fund for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 are $11,431,440 and

$2,472,973, respectively, 60
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RELATED -PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As discussed in Note 11, the Authority entered into a lease and agreement for Bergen Pines County
Hospital, now known as the Bergen Regional Medical Center, with the County, and a lease and
operating agreement for Bergen Pines County Hospital, now known as the Bergen Regional Medical
Center, with Solomon Health Group, LL.C. These agreements require the Authority to provide certain
administrative and financial services in conjunction with the implementation of these agreements.
The County provides personnel to act on behalf of the Authority in fulfillment of the obligations
undertaken by the Authority pursuant to these agreements. During 2017 and 2016 the Authority
reimbursed the County $180,037 and $197,965, respectively, for these personnel services.

In addition, the County provides office space and various administrative services to the Authority.
The County and the Authority have agreed that the Authority pay the cost for such services. For 2017
and 2016, the cost was $75,000 and $75,000, respectively.

The County, which is a provider of Class II Governmental Nursing Facilities, entered into an
Intergovernmental Transfer Agreement (“1GT) with the State Treasurer of New Jersey to participate
in a program of intergovernmental transfers during the years 2000 through 2003 for the purpose of
increasing federal financial assistance in the State’s Medicaid program. The County has not had an
IGT transaction since 2003.

The funds that County Nursing Facilities providers receive, as reimbursement for the services
provided to Medicaid beneficiaries, come partly from the State and partly from the Federal
government, and intergovernmental transfers may be used as a means of partially satisfying the State’s
share of Medicaid costs.

The County entered into the Agreement in order to provide additional Medical Assistance payments
to qualifying County Nursing Facilities providers that participate in the Medicaid program. All
expenses of these issuances including interest are paid for by the State of New Jersey,

During 2004, the County of Bergen has transferred the responsibility for implementing the operation
of the Bergen County Equestrian Center to the Bergen County Improvement Authority, During 2012,
the Authority transferred the responsibility for the operation of the Bergen Equestrian Center back
to the County of Bergen — Parks Division,

Additionally, the County of Bergen, through a grant agreement with the Bergen County Improvement

Authority, has transferred the responsibility for implementing the closure and redevelopment of the
Overpeck County Park Landfill to the BCIA,
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OYERPECK COUNTY PARK DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

The County of Bergen owns Overpeck County Park, which had been a municipal sanitary landfill
from 1952 to 1975. Four hundred acres of the site remain undeveloped. The site was conveyed to
the County by the Village of Ridgefield Park, Township of Teaneck, Borough of Leonia, Borough of
Palisades Park and City of Englewood for the purpose of development as a public park. The site to
be developed includes land in Ridgefield Park, Teaneck, Leonia, and Palisades Park.

The County entered into an amended final judgement on October 1, 2002 that requires the
redevelopment of portions of the site by September 30, 2009. The natural forces of erosion have
caused the site to deteriorate. It is necessary to close the landfill under present D.E.P. requirements
to develop the park facilities in the future.

The County had, by letter dated March 20, 2003, indicated to the BCIA its desire that the BCIA take
on the responsibility, on behalf of the County, of engaging in such landfill operations at the Site of
the Project as will ultimately enable the BCIA, on behalf of the County, to improve, further and
promote the recreational attractiveness of the County through the planning, acquisition, construction,
improvement, maintenance and operation, at the Site of the Project, of facilities for the recreation and
entertainment of the citizens of the County,

By resolution dated March 31, 2003 (Resolution No. 03-19), the BCIA has authorized and directed
its commissioners and officers, for and on behalf of the BCIA, to take such action, and to execute and
deliver in the name of the BCIA such documents, as may be necessary or appropriate to cause the
BCIA to undertake on behalf of the County the responsibility for such landfill redevelopment
operations at the Site,

In connection with the BCIA’s undertaking the Project at the Site, the BCIA will be required to retain
professionals and/or contractors to provide bank stabilization; to install such environmental
monitoring and control devices as may be necessary to close the former landfill; to provide wetlands
mitigation as required; to obtain and deposit beneficially reusable material on Site and grade the same
in accordance with the requirements of the Amended Final Judgment; to develop active and passive
park facilities at the Site for use by the public; and to obtain all Federal, State and Local permits and
approvals that may be required for the completion of such tasks.

In order to enable the BCIA to undertake the responsibilities of the County under the Amended Final
Judgment, including the issuance of bonds that may be required in order to finance the closing of the
landfill in accordance with law, the County and the BCIA entered into an agreement dated June 20,
2003 entitled “Overpeck County Park Development Agreement”, a copy of which is on file with the
BCIA.
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DEFERRED LANDFILL LICENSING RIGHTS AND OTHER COSTS

As described in Note 17, the County has transferred the responsibility for the closure and
redevelopment of the landfill to the Authority through the Overpeck County Park Development
Agreement between the County and the Authority. As part of this agreement, the BCIA has issued
bonds and notes in the amount of $12,000,000 which are cross-collateralized by the County of
Bergen,

Pursuant to the Agreement, the BCIA has paid $8,500,000 to the County as a licensing fee payment.

The balance of the funds will be used for expenses relating to the project including but not limited
to professional fees, licensing and permitting costs and costs of bond issuance.

CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS

State and federal laws and regulations require the Authority to place a final cover on its landfill site
and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure
of its entire landfill operations. Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid in the future,
the Authority reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in
each period based on capacity used as of each balance sheet date.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 18 requires the costs associated with
the closure of the landfill be recognized based on the landfill’s use rather than on the passage of time,
using a formula provided by the GASB statement.

An analysis of the cost estimates for the closure and post closure of the landfill was performed. The
report, which was received in April of 2008, estimated the total costs of closure to be $10,800,000
and the estimated post closure cost for thirty years in $9,800,000. Bergen County has taken the
responsibility for direct payment of the post-closure costs. The remaining costs accrued through
December 31,2017 based on a percentage of the capacity filled at December 31, 2017 was $191,037,
In accordance with GASB No. 18 the Authority has recognized a liability for 2017 of $191,037.

While the Authority has accrued such expenses as of December 31, 2017, the County of Bergen will
be providing the ultimate funding of these costs, On December 20, 2006, the County of Bergen
adopted Ordinance 06-35 which provides for a portion of the closure costs. The Authority has
recorded a receivable from the County for $123,580 to recognize their obligation for these costs,
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RESERVES REQUIRED BY BOND RESOLUTION

The following accounts are required by the Authority’s bond resolution:

Debt Service Fund
Overpeck
December 31, 2017 Landfill Total
Required Balances $307,708 $307,708
Cash and Investments 7.386 7,386
Excess or (Deficit) ($300,322) ($300,322)

Debt Service Fund

General Bergen Regional Overpeck
December 31, 2016 Fund Medical Center Landfill Total
Required Balances $15,143 $716,411 $293,125 $1,024,679
Cash and Investments 15,143 716,411 7.344 738.898
Excess or (Deficit) $ -0- § -0- ($285,781) $285.781

PENSION PLLANS

Description of Plans:

Authority employees participate in the State of New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement System
(PERS) contributory, defined benefit public employee retirement systems or the Defined
Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP), a tax-qualified defined contribution money purchase
pension plan under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) 401(a).

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description

The State of New Jersey Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions
and Benefits (the "Division"). For additional information about the PERS, please refer to the
Division's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at

www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annrpts.shtm.
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PENSION PLANS, (continued)

Benefits Provided

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death and
disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest
after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS. The following represents the
membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition

1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
03 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010

4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011

5  Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55™ of final average salary for each year of service credit is available
to Tiers I and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service
retirement benefits of 1/60" of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to Tier
4 members upon reaching age 62 and to Tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement
benefits are available to Tiers 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, to Tiers 3 and 4 before age 62
with 25 or more years of service credit and Tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit before age
65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member retires prior to the
age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective
tier. Tier 1| members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 50 to age 60 if they have at least 25
vears of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10 years of service
credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier,

Defined Contribution Retirement Program

Prudential Financial jointly administers the DCRP investments with the NJ Division of Pensions and
Benefits, If an employee is ineligible to enroll in the PERS, the employee may be eligible to enroll
inthe DCRP. DCRP provides eligible members with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement
benefit, along with life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting is immediate upon enroliment for
members of the DCRP.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues
publicly available financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary
information of the DCRP. The financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New
Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 293, Trenton, New
Jersey, 08625-0295,
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PENSION PLANS, (continued)

Defined Contribution Retirement Program, (continued)

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Employee contributions are
based on percentages of 5.50% for DCRP of employees' annual compensation, as defined. The DCRP
was established July 1, 2007, under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and expanded under the
provisions of Chapter 89, P.L. 2008. Employee contributions for DCRP are matched by a 3%
employer contribution.

Contribution Requirements

The contribution policy is set by laws of the State of New Jersey and, in most retirement systems,
contributions are required by active members and contributing employers. Plan member and
employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. The pension funds
provide for employee contributions based on 5.5% for PERS. This amount will increase to 6.5% plus
an additional 1% phased in over 7 years beginning 2012, of the employee’s annual compensation, as
defined by law. Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in all Funds.
The actuarially determined employer contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments and
noncontributory death benefits in the PERS.

The Authority’s contribution to the various plans, equal to the required contributions for each year,
were as follows:

Year PERS DC
2017 $23,446 $-0-
2016 20,546 Q-

2015 18,072 -0-

Public Emplevees Retirement Svstem (PERS)

At December 31, 2017, the Authority had a liability of $589,151 for its proportionate share of the
PERS net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of that date, The Authority's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
Authority's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions
of all participating governmental entities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the Authority's
proportion was .0025308908 percent, which was an increase of .0002181566 percent from its
proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.
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PENSION PLANS, (continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Authority recognized pension expense of $63,586. At
Decamber 31,2017, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS
from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience $13,872 $
Changes of assumptions 118,694 118,258
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 4,012
Changes in proportion and differences between the Authority’s
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 75,115
Total $211.693 $118.258

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from contributions
subsequent to the measurement date (June 30, 2017) will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the subsequent year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (excluding changes in proportion) will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended December 31;

2018 $13,869
2019 20,929
2020 12,682
2021 (16,867)
2022 (12,293)
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21. PENSION PLANS, (continued)

Changes in Proportion

The previous amounts do not include employer specific deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to changes in proportion. These amounts should be recognized (amortized)
by each employer over the average of the expected remaining service lives of all plan members, which
is 5.48, 5.57, 5.72 and 6.44 years for 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014 amounts, respectively.

Additional Information

Local Group Collective balances at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Dec. 31, 2017 Dec. 31, 2016
Collective deferred outflows of resources $6,424,455,842 $8,685,338,380
Collective deferred inflows of resources 5,700,625,981 870,133,595
Collective net pension liability 23,278,401,588 29,617,131,759
Authority's Proportion 0025308908% 0023127342%

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2016, which rolled forward to June 30, 2017, This actuarial valuation used the
following assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement.

Inflation 2,25 Percent
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.65-4.15 Percent (based on age)
Thereafter 2.65-5.15 Percent (based on age)
Investment Rate of Return 7.00 Percent
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Actuarial Assumptions, (continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014. It is likely that future experience will not
exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these
assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience
‘deviates, the larger the impact on future financial statements.

Mortality Rates

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Pre-retirement Mortality Table
for male and female active participants. For State employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years for
males and females. For local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years
for females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year
of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plans actuary’s modified MP-2014 projection
scale, Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female
Mortality Tables (setback 1 year for males and females) for service retirements and beneficiaries of
former members and a one year static projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA, In
addition, the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members provide for future
improvements in mortality from the base year 0o£2013 using a generational approach based on the plan
actuary’s modified MP-2014 projection scale. Disability retirement rates used to value disabled
retirees were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set
forward 1 year for females.

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at
June 30, 2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the
Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board oftrustees and the actuaries,
The long-term expected rate of refurn was determined using a building block method in which best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class, These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates
of return for each major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are
summarized in the following table:
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Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Absolute return/risk mitigation 5.00% 5.51%
Cash equivalents 5.50% 1.00%
U.S. Treasuries 3.00% 1.87%
Investment grade credit 10.00% 3.78%
Public high yield 2.50% 6.82%
Global diversified credit 5.00% 7.10%
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6.60%
Debt related private equity 2.00% 10.63%
Debt related real estate 1.00% 6.61%
Private real asset 2.50% 11.83%
Equity related real estate 6.25% 9.23%
U.S. equity 30.00% 8.19%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 11.50% 9.00%
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.64%
Buyouts/venture capital 8.25% 13.08%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.00% as of June 30, 2017. This
single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.00% and a municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30, 2017 based on the Bond
Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal
bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate
in the most recent fiscal year. The State employer contributed 40% of the actuarially determined
contributions and the local employers contributed 100% of their actuarially determined contributions.
Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2040. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2040
and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining
the total pension liability.
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Uni_t of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

PENSION PLANS, (continued)

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the participating employers as of June 30,
2017, respectively, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the collective
net pension liability would be if it was calculated using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower
or 1- percentage-point higher than the current rate:

June 30. 2017

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
4.00% 5.00% 6.00%
Authority's proportionate share of
the pension liability $730,882 $589,151 $471,072

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System (PERS).
The financial report may be accessed at www state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the post-retirement health benefit program plans ,
for participating municipalifies including the Authority. |

As aresult of implementing Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No, 43,
Financial Reporting for Post-employment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans (OPEB), effective
for Fiscal Year 2007, the State Health Benefits Program (SHBP), and the Prescription Drug Program
(PDP), and Post-Retirement Medical (PRM) of the PERS and the Teacher's Pension and Annuity
(TPAF) are combined and reported as Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds in the State's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). Specifically, SHBP-State, PDP-State, and the PRM
of the PERS are combined and reported as Health Benefits Program Fund - State classified as a
single employer plan. The SHBP-Local, PDP-Local, and the PRM of the TPAF-Local are combined
and reported as Health Benefits Program Fund—FLocal Government classified as a cost sharing
multiple-employer plan.
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS, (continued)

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following health benefit program covering
substantially all local government employees from local participating employers.

State Health Benefits Program Funds (HBPF) — Local Government (including Prescription Drug
Program Fund) — Certain local employers who participate in the State Health Benefits Program
provide health insurance coverage to their employees at retirement. Retirees who are not eligible for
employer paid health coverage at retirement can continue in the program by paying the cost of the
insurance for themselves and their covered dependents. Also, local employees are eligible for the PDP
coverage after 60 days of employment.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues
publicly available financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary
information of the above Fund. The financial reports may be assessed via, the New Jersey, Division
of Pensions and Benefits website at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the health benefit programs are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. Employer contributions are recognized when payable to the health benefit programs.
Benefits or refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the health
benetit programs.

Significant Legislation

P.L. 2011, c.78, effective October 2011, sets new employee contribution requirements towards the
cost of employer-provided health benefit coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the cost of coverage. The rate of contribution is determined based on the employee's
annual salary and the selected level of coverage. The increased employee contributions will be phased
in over a 4-year period for those employed prior to this new legislation's effective date with a
minimum contribution required to be at least 1.5% of salary. For those employed on or after June 28,
2011 the 4-year phase in does not apply, and contributions based on the full percentage rate of
contribution are required.

Investment Valuation

Investments are reported at fair value, Investments that do not have an established market are
reported at estimated fair values.

-70-




22,

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS, (continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2015, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the State had a $67.5 billion unfunded
actuarial liability for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) which is made up of $25.9 billion for
state active and retired members and $41.6 billion for education employees and retirees that become
the obligation of the State of New Jersey upon retirement,

The funded status and funding progress of the OPEB includes actuarial valuations which involve
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into
the future, These amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past
expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of future events.

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under
the terms of the OPEB in effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the
sharing of costs between the employer and members at the point in time, The projection of benefits
for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal
contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and members in
the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the July 1, 2015 OPEB actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost
method, and the market value was used as asset valuation method for the OPEB, The actuarial
assumptions inciuded an assumed investment rate of return of 4,50 percent.

Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contribution

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c,6 required the Public Employees' Retirement System to fund
post-retirement medical benefits for those State and participating local government employees who
retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. As of June 30,
2015, there were 107,314 retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits, and the State
contributed $1.25 billion on their behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions
by the State and participating local governments in accordance with P.L. 1994, ¢.62. Funding of
post-retirement medical benefits changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning
in Fiscal Year 1994,
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

POST-RETIREMENT MEDICAL BENEFITS, (continued)

The State sets the employer contribution rate based on a pay-as-you-go basis rather than the annual
required contribution of the employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
the parameters of GASB Statement 45, The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The Authority’s
contributions to the State Health Benefits Program Fund-Local Government for post-retirement
benefits for the years ended December 31,2017, 2016 and 2015 were $38,777, $37,475 and $38,956,
respectively, which equaled the required contributions for each year (or were not available),

FEDERAL ARBITRAGE REGULATIONS

The Authority is subject to Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code as it pertains to the arbitrage
rebate on all tax-exempt obligations, both long and short-term debt. Under the 1986 Tax Reform Act,
the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) required that all excess earnings from investment proceeds be
rebated to the IRS. Arbitrage, for purposes of these regulations, is defined as the difference between
the yield on the investment and the yield on the obligations issued. If there are excess earnings, this
amount may be required to be rebated to the IRS. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Authority had
no estimated arbitrage earnings due to the IRS.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement applies to
government employers who provided OPEB plans to their employees and basically parallels GASB
Statement 68 and replaces GASB Statement 45. The Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2017. The Authority is currently reviewing what effect, if any, this Statement might
have on future financial statements.

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments, which reduces the
GAAP hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP from the four categories under GASB
Statement No. 55, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Local
Governments. The first category of authoritative GAAP consists of GASB Statements of
Governmental Accounting Standards. The second category comprises GASB Technical Bulletins and
Implementation Guides, as well as guidance from the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants that is cleared by the GASB. The Authority is currently reviewing what effect, if any,
this Statement might have on future financial statements.
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
{A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS, (continued)

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement
Disclosures, which improve financial reporting by giving users of financial statements essential
information that is not consistently or comprehensively reported to the public at present. Disclosure
of information about the nature and magnitude of tax abatements will make these transactions mote
transparent to financial statement users. As a result, users will be better equipped to understand (1)
how tax abatements affect a government's future ability to raise resources and meet its financial
obligations and (2} the impact those abatements have on a government's financial position and
economic condition. The Authority believes this Statement will have no impact on future financial
statements.

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 78, Pensions Provided
through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans, which establishes the criteria for
identifying the applicable pension plans and addresses measurement and recognition for pension
liabilities, expense and expenditures; note disclosures of descriptive information about the plan,
benefit terms, and contributions items; and required supplementary information presenting required
contribution amounts for the past 10 fiscal years., The Authority is currently reviewing what effect
this Statement might have on future financial statements.

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 79, Certain External
Investment Pools and Pool Participation, which permits qualifying external investment pools to
measure pool investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. The Authority is
currently reviewing what effect this Statement might have on future financial statements.

The Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 80, Blending
Requirements for Certain Component Units, which provides clarity about how certain component
units incorporated as not-for-profit corporations should be presented in the financial statements of the
primary state or local government. The Authority does not believe this Statement will have any effect
on future financial statements.

In March 2016, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 81,
Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and
financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing recognition and
measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreement. The
Authority does not believe this Statement will have any effect on future financial statements.
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS, (continued)

In March 2016, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 82,
Pension Issues - an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 67, No. 68 and No. 73. The objective of this
Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised with respect to Statement No. 67,
Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No., 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions,
and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not
Within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements
67 and 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-
related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the
treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting
purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan
member) contribution requirements. The Authority does not believe this Statement will have any
effect on future financial statements.

In November 2016, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 83,
Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. This Statement establishes criteria for determining the timing
and pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflows of resources for asset
retirement obligations (AROs). The Authority does not believe this Statement will have any effect on
future financial statements,

In January 2017, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 84,
Fiduciary Activities. This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state
and local governments. The focus on the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is
controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary
relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify component units and postemployment
benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. The Authority is currently evaluating the effects, if
any, this Statement may have on future financial statements.

In March 2017, the Government Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 83,
Omnibus 2017, which addresses practice issues that have been identified during the implementation
and application of certain GASB statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including
issues relating to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and
postemployment benefits. The Authority is currently reviewing what effect, if any, this Statement
might have on future financial statements.
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TOQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS, (continued)

InMay 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 86, Certain
Debt Extinguishment Issues, which improves consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-
substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary
assets acquired with only existing resources—resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt-—are
placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves
accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to
financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The Authority is currently reviewing
what effect, if any, this Statement might have on future financial statements.

In June 2017, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement No. 87, Leases,
which is intended to increase the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring
recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating
leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and
an intangible right-to-use lease asset, as a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a
deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about
the government’s leasing activities. The Authority is currently reviewing what effect, if any, this
Statement might have on future financial statements,

OTHER INFORMATION

A. Local Finance Board Applications

The Authority is preparing several applications to the Local Finance Board to issue new conduit
on behalf of several local governments.

B. Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to property, general [iability, automobile
coverage, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to
employees, termination of employees and natural disasters. The Authority has obtained commercial
insurance coverage to guard against these events to minimize the exposure to the Authority should
they occur.

The Authority has joined the County of Bergen self insured health and prescription benefits plan

for its employees. The participating members fund the entire cost of the plan. Claims are paid
directly by the plan.
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016
(CONTINUED)

25. OTHER INFORMATION, (continued)

The Authority is 2 member of the County of Bergen's Self Insurance pool for property, general
liability and automobile liability.

The relationship between the Authority and the County of Bergen is governed by a contract and
by-laws that have been adopted by resolution of the unit's governing body. The Authority has
agreed to pay an annual installment based on a computation of the Authority's share of the
County's premium as provided by the County. In return for this, the County of Bergen
administers the Authority's insurance funds.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have
there been any settlements in excess of insurance coverage's in any of the prior three years.

C. New Jersey Unemplovment Compensation Insurance

The Authority has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance
under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method". Under this plan, the Authority is required to
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees
and charged to its account with the State. The Authority is billed quarterly for amounts due to
the State. The following is a summary of Authority contributions, employee contributions,
reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending balance of the Authority's
expendable trust fund for the current and prior year:

Employee
Fiscal Year Contributions Amount Ending
Ending and Interest Reimbursed Balance
2017 $286 $5 $4,210
2016 342 58 3,929
2015 370 60 3,645

26. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Authority has evaluated subsequent events through May 16, 2018, the date which the financial
statements were available to be issued and no additional items, except as noted above, were noted for
disclosure.
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Exhibit L-3
BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

Nate to Required Schedules of Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

Change in benefit terms
None
Change in assumpticns

The calculation of the discount rate used to measure the total
pension liability is dependent upon the long-term expected rate
of return, and the municipal bond index rate. There was a change
in the municipal bond index rate from the prior measurement date
to the current measurement date, resulting in a change in the
discount rate from 3.98% to 5.00%. This change in the discount
rate is considered to be a change in actuarial assumptions under
GASBS No. 68.
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ASSETS
Unrestricted Current Assets
Operating Account:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5
Accounts Receivabie (Net)
Die From State of New Jersey
De From County of Bergen
Due From General Fund
Due From Overpeck Landfill

Total Unrestricted Current Assets

Restricted Curreat Assets
Debt Service Fund
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Construction Fund
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Unemployment Trust Fund:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Series 2017 Project Fund
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Series 2017 Cost of Issurnce Fund
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Series 2017 Waorking Capital Fund
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accrued Interest Receivable
Loan Receivable
Medical Center Escrow
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Restricted Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Non-Current Assets
Capital Assets
Land
Leasehold Improveinents
Accumulated Amortization
Constrction in Progress
Total Non-Cuurent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows - PERS

Total Deferred Cutflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources §

SCHEDULE 1

Page 1 of 2
BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
{A Compenent Unit of the County of Bergen}
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
AS OE DECEMBER 31, 2617
Bergen
General Medical Equestrian Overpeck Golf
Fund Center Center Landfil} Course Total
14,900,545 8,369,012 3 105,923 23,375,480
48,297 404 48,701
2,798 2,798
2,301 1,003,075 123,580 1,128,960
15,446,106 33,519 15,479,625
44,420 44,420
14,998,361 24,818,601 33,519 229,503 - 40,079,984
486,720 7,386 414,106
35 1,850 1,889
4210 4210
43,189,468 374,617 43,564,085
14,789 4,621 21,410
3,614,136 1,614,136
£5,684 85,684
20,000,690 20,000,000
5,713,005 5,713,005
4,249 71,025,652 - 7,386 381,238 71,418,525
15,002,610 95,844,253 33,519 236,889 381,238 111,498,509
8,037,723 8,037,723
66,347,453 66,347,453
(66,347,453} (66,347,453
10,636,780 10,636,780
- 10,636,780 - - 8,037,723 18,674,503
15,002,610 106,481,033 33,519 236,889 8,418,961 130,173,012
211,693 211,693
211,693 - - - - 211,693
15,214,303 106,481,033 33,519 $ 236,889 5 8,418,951 130,384,705
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SCHEDULE L

Page 2 of 2 !
BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY \
{A Component Unit of the County of Bergen) |
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION ‘
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017
|
.
i
Bergen 1
General Medical Equestrian Overpeck Golf |
Fund Center Center Landfill Course Total
LIABILITIES
Current Lizbilities (Payable from Unrestricted Assets)
Ageounts Payable 3 65,654 5 400,575 b ¥ $ 5 466,229
Accounts Payable - PERS 23,446 23,444
Contracts Payable 8,364,809 8,364,809
Due to County of Berpen 12,164 8,000,000 33,519 8,045,683
Accrued Liabilities - 1.andfill Closure/Postclosure 191,037 191,037
Due to Bergen Regional Medical Center Fund 15,446,106 15,446,106
Due to Bergen Equestrian Center 33,519 33.519
Due to General Fund 44,420 44,420
15,580,589 16,765,384 33,519 235,457 - 32,615,249
Current Liabilities (Payable from Restricted Assets)
Project Bonds Payable 1,055,000 1,055,000
Project Notes Payable 8,500,000 8,500,000
Escrow Deposit Payable 5,713,005 5,713,005
Agcried Interest on Bends and Notes 421,509 47,700 14,535 483,764
- 6,134,514 - 1,102,700 8,514,555 15,751,769
Total Current Liabilities 15,580,889 22,899,898 33,519 1,338,157 8,514,555 48,367,018
Won-Current Liabilities:
Compensated Absences Payabie 4,401 39,612 44013 ;
Net Pension Lisbility - PERS 589,151 589,151 :
Project Notes Payable 74,935,000 74,935,000
Project Bonds and Notes Payable 2,293,944 2,293 944
Total Non-Crurent Liabilities 593,552 74,974,612 - 2,293,944 - 77,862,108
Total Liabilities 16,174,441 97,874,510 33,519 3,632,101 8 514,555 126,225,126 |
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOTRCES
Deferred Inflows - PERS 118,258 118,258
NET POSITION!
et Investment in Capital Assets {64,298,220) (3,348,944) (462,277) (68,105,441)
Restricted For:
Debt Service 307,708 307,708
Censtmction Fund 39 43,191,318 43,191,357
Unemployment Trust 4,210 4,210
Working Capital Fund 21,699,820 21,699,820
Golf Course Praject 366,683 366,683
Unresiricted:
Designated - Bergen Regional Medical Center 8.013,605 8,013,605
Undesignated (1,082,645) - (353,976) (1,436,623)
Total Net Position $§  (1,078396) § 8,606,523 8§ - (3,395.712) § (95,594 8 4,037,321
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

{A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

OPERATING REVENUES
Service Charges - Bergen Regional Medical Ceater
Bergen County Contributions
Solomon Health Group - Lease
Solomon Health Group - Oversight
Miscellaneons

Total Operating Revenues

OFPERATING EXPENSES
Administration
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Other Expense
Cost of Providing Services
Other Expense
Reimbursements to Bergen County
Amortization of Leasehold Improvements

Total Operating Expenses
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)

Interest an Investments

Interest on Working Capital Loan

Premium on Notes

Note Issuance Costs

Interest Expense

Amortization of Discounts, Premiums, Deferred Lasses

Total Non-Operating Income (Expenses}

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Total Net Position, January

Total Net Position, December 31,

$

SCHEDULE 2

Generat Medical Overpeck Golf Combined
Fund Center Landfill Course Total

$ 198,109,477 3 $ 198,109,477

520,000 11,431,440 1,216,785 13,168,225
9,364,442 9,364,442

273,059 273,059

293 603 293,603
813,603 219,178,418 1,216,785 . 221,208 806
15,966 385,614 405,580
64,891 209,672 274,563
315414 15,233 330,647
210,661,950 210,661,950

1,84C,129 1,840,129

2,341,591 2,341,591

400,271 215,454,189 - - 215,854,460
413,332 3,724,229 1,216,785 - 5,354,346
624 61,623 23 62,270
85,492 85,492

399,403 87,465 486,868
(319,684} (168,504} (488,188)
@13 {10,074} (197,715) {14,555) (222,557}
(3,052) (144,392 10,686 (136,758)
(2,641) 72,368 {187,006} (95,594) (212,873)
410,691 3,796,597 1,029,779 (95,594) 5,141,473
(1,489,087) 4,800,026 (4,424,991) - {1,104,152)
(1,078,396) §& 8,606,523 3 {3,395212) § (95,554) $ 4,037,321

-84-




CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Received from Bergen County
Cash Received from Medical Center Fund
Cash Reccived fiom Soloman Health Group
Cash Received from Miscellaneons Fees
Cash Paid to Bergen County
Cash Paid to General Fund
Cash Paid to Suppliers and Others
Cash Paid to Employees

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Project Notes Issued

Premium Received

Lssuance Costs Paid

Principal Payments on Bonds

Acquisition of Capital Assets

Interest Paid on Bonds

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and
Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Working Capital Loans
Interest Received
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - January 1,
Cash and Cash Equivalents - December 31,
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31

Unrestricted - Cash and Cash Equivalents
Resiricted - Cash and Cash Equivalents

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

SCHEDULE 3

(Page | of2)

General Medical Overpeck Golf
Fund Center Landfill Course Total
b 3 203,822,482 203822482
520,000 20,115,518 1,216,785 21,852,303
13,713,208 13,713,208
9,637,501 9,637,501
326,759 326,759
(1,840,129} (1,840,129)
{13,713,208) (13,713,208)
(318,067) (225,990,943} {226,309,010)
(19,965} (385,614) (405,580)
14,221,934 (8,334,393} 1,216,785 - 7,084,324
74,935,000 8,500,000 83,435,000
399,403 87,465 486,868
(319,684 (168,504) 188,188
(24,115) (1,140,885} (1,005,000} 2,170,000}
{10,215272) (8,037,723) (18,252,995)
(284) {13,432) (211,785) {225,501}
{24,399} 63,645,130 (1,216,783) 381,238 62,785,184
(20,000,000 (20,000,600
624 61,431 23 62,078
624 (19,938,569) 23 - (19,937,922)
14,198,159 35,332,168 23 381,238 49,931,588
706,635 23,936,812 113,286 - 24,776,733
5 14,904,754 3 59,308,980 113,309 381,238 ] 14,708,321
b 14,900,545 3 8,365,012 105,923 23,375,480
4,249 50,939,968 7,386 381,238 31,332,841
5 14,904,754 b 59,308,980 113,309 381,238 74,708,321
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SCHEDULE 3

(Pape 2 0f 2)
BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORY[Y
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
General Medical Overpeck Golf
Tund Center Landfil Course Totat
Reconcillption of Operating Income {Loss) to Net Cash
Provided {Used) by Operating Aciivities
Operating Income (Loss) b 413,332 3 3,724229 3 1,216,785 3 $ 5,354,346
Adjustments to Reconeile Operating Income (Loss) fo Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities;
Amortization of Leasehold Improvements . 2,341,591 2,341,591
Adjostment 1o Pension Expense ' 43,040 43,040
(Increase)/Decrease it Accounts Receivable 33,156 33,156
(Increase)/Decrease in Due From Bergen County 684,078 684,078
(Increase)/Decrease in Due From General Fund (13,713,208) (13,713,208)
(Increase)/Decrease in Due From State of New Jersey 7,202 7.202
Increase/(Decrease) i Accounts Payable 11,585 (546,854) (535,269)
Increase/(Decrease) in Compensated Absences Payable 506 4,561 5,067
Increase/(Decrease) in Contracts Payable (14,561,795) (14,561,795)
Increase/(Decrenase) in Escrow Deposit Payable 5,713,003 5,713,005
Increase/(Decrease) in Due te Bergen County 8,000,000 8,000,000
Increase/(Decrease) in Due to Bergen Reg. Medical Center 13,713,208 13,713,208
Tncrease/{ Decrease) in Payroll Taxes Payable (95) (95)
Total Adjustments 13,808,602 (12,078,622) - - 1,729,980
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 3 14,221,934 $ (8,354,393 % 1,216,783 $ - b 7,084,316
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CPERATING REVENUES
Financing Fees
Annual Administration Fees
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenues

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Bergen County Contributions
Interest Transfers - BRMC
Interest on Investments and Deposits

Total Non-Operating Revenues
Total Revenues

OPERATING APPROPRIATIONS
ADMINISTRATION
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Other Expenses

Total Administration

COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES
Other Expenses

Total Cost of Providing Services

NON-OPERATING APPROPRIATIONS

Principal Payments on Debt
Interest Payments on Debt

Total Non-Operating Appropriations

Total Appropriations

Total Budgetary Income {Loss)

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

(A Compoyent Unit of the County of Bergen)

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES COMPARED TQ BUDGET
LS LD AF R YNV AND KAPENSES COMPARED TO BUDGET

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

BUDGETARY BASIS

(With Comparative Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2016}

SCHEDULE 4

(Page 1 of 2)

Variance
2017 2017 Excess 2016
Budpget Actual (Deficit) Actual
$ 50,000 $ 104,294 54,294 103,894
154,054 ' 188,984 34,930 163,294
70,000 325 (69.,675) 2,837
3 274,054 $ 293,603 19,549 270,025
520,000 520,000 - 200,000
- 50,537
624 624 327
520,000 520624 624 250,864
794,054 814,227 20,173 520,889
20,472 19,966 506 41,604
7,222 21,851 (14,629 16,938
661,127 315,414 345,713 285,481
688,821 357,231 331,590 344,023
1,438 - 1,438 -
1,438 - 1,438 -
24,116 24,116 - 57,857
284 284 . 1,772
24,400 24,400 - 59,629
714,659 381,631 133,028 403,652
79,395 432,596 353,201 117,237
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BERGE

N COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

L L L LS ALA L P I SR PR LT LS T 8

Total Budgetary Income (Loss) - Brought forward

Reconciliation of Budgetary Income (Loss)
To Change in Net Position (GAAP)

Increases to Budgetary Income (Loss):
Principal Payments on Bonds Payable
Accrued Interest Payable (Net)

Decreases to Budgetary Income (Loss):
Adjustment to Pension Expense
Interest Expense - Original Issue Discount
Interest Expense - Deferred Loss on Refunding of Debt

Change in Net Position - GAAP

{A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES COMPARED TO BUDGET
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

BUDGETARY BASIS
(With Comparative Amounts for the Year Ended December 3L, 2016)

2017
Budget

-88-

2017
Actual

432,596

24,116

(43,040)
(345)
(2,707)

410,691

Variance

Excess

{Deficit)

SCHEDULE 4
{Page 2 of 2)

2016
Actual

117,237

57,857

(58.938)
(345)
(2,707

113,084




SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES COMPARED TO BUDGEYT

OPERATING REVENUES
Net Position Appropriated
Service Charges - Bergen Regional Medical Centey
Bergen County Contributions to Operating Costs
Solomon Health Group Lease
Solomeon Health Group Oversight
Miscellaneous Fees

Total Operating Revenues

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest on Working Capital Loan
Interest on Invesiments and Deposits

Tetal Non-Operating Revenues
Total Revenues

OPERATING APPROPRIATIONS
ADMINISTRATION
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Other Expenses

Total Administration

COST OF PROVIDING SERVICES
Other Expenses:
Professional Fees
Pastoral Care
Interiocal Agreement with Bergen County - Lease of
Hospital Assets
Contract - Management of Hospital Operations
Other Cost of Providing Services
State of New Jersey Health Care Subsidy
Health Benefits for Retirees - Bergen County

Total Cost of Providing Services
NON-OPERATING APPROPRIATIONS

Principal Payments on Debt

Interest Payments on Debt

Coniributions t¢ Bergen County

Total Non-Operating Appropriations

Total Appropriations

Total Budgefary Income (Loss)

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROYEMENT AUTHORITY

{A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

BERGEN REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

$

BUDGETARY BASIS
{(With Comparative Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2016)

SCHEDULE 5

(Page 1 of 2)

-80.

Variance
2017 2017 Excess 2016
Budget Actual {Deficit) Actual
1300000  § 1,300,000 -8
200,000,600 198,109,477 (1,890,523) 222,487,062
4,554 317 11,431,440 6,877,123 1,012,419
9,083,554 9,364,442 280,888 8,733,731
363,890 273,059 (90,831) 362,363
215,301,761 3 220,478 418 5,176,657 $ 232,595,575
85,492 85,452
20,000 61,623 41,623 23,405
20,000 147,115 127,115 23,405
215,321,761 220,625,533 5,303,772 232 618,980
466,699 385,614 81,085 374,434
202,748 209,672 (6,924) 257,670
285410 15,233 270,177 14,432
954 857 610,519 344,338 646,536
8,425,000 10,013,592 (1,588,592) 4,618,244
190,000 162,415 27,585 206,022
1,922,534 1,425,026 497,508 1,900,034
200,000,000 196,747,975 3,252,025 221,154,924
19,108 19,108
1,361,502 (1,361,502) 1,332,138
951,440 (951,440) 1,012,419
210,556,642 210,661,950 {105,308) 230,223,781
1,140,885 1,140,885 - 2,737,143
13,432 13,432 - 83,844
1,300,000 1,840,129 (540,129) 1,307,000
2,454,317 2,994 446 (540,129) 4,127,987
213,965,816 214,266,915 (301,099) 234,998,304
1,355,945 6,358,618 5,002,673 (2,379,324)




BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the C'ounty of Bergen)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES COMPARED TO BUDGET

Total Budgetary Income (Loss} - Brought forward

Reconciliation of Budgetary Income (Loss)
To Change in Net Position (GAAF)

Increases to Budgetary Income (Loss):
Bergen County Contribution to Capital Costs
Principai Payments on Bonds Payable
Note Premium
Accrued [nterest Payable (Net)

Decreases to Budgetary Income (Loss):
Net Position Appropriated
Accrued Interest Payable (Net)
Interest Income Transfer to General Fund
Note Jssuance Costs
Interest Expense - Original Issue Discount
Interest Expense - Deferred Loss on Refunding of Debt
Amortization of Leasehold Improvements

Change in Net Position - GAAP

BERGEN REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

BUDGETARY BASIS
(With Comparative Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2016)

2017
Budget

90

2017
Actual

6,358,618

1,140,885
399,403
3,358

(1,300,000)

{319,684)
(16.300)
{128,092

(2,341,591)

3,796,597

SCHEDULE 5
(Page 2 0f2)

Variance
Excess 2016
{Deficit) Actual

(2,379,324} ;

1,460,554
2,737,143

12,566

(50,537)
{16,300)
{128,092)
(7,493 430)

(5,857,420)



OPERATING REVENUES
Bergen County Contributions
Other

Total Operating Revenues

NON-OPERATING REVENUES
Interest on Investments and Deposits

Total Non-Operating Revenues
Total Reveres
OPERATING APPROPRIATIONS
ADMINISTRATION
Other Expenses
Total Administration
NON-OPERATING APPROPRIATIONS
Principal Payvments on Debt
Interest Payments on Debt
Total Non-Operating Appropriations
Total Appropriations

Total Budgetary Income (Loss}

Reconciliation of Budgetary Income (Loss)
To Change in Net Position (GAAFP)

Increases to Budgetary Income (Loss):
Principal Payments on Bonds Payable
Accrued Tnterest Payable (Net)

Interest Expense - Original Issue Premium

Change in Net Position - GAAP

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Berpen)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES COMPARED TO BUDGET
OVERPECK LANDFILL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017
BUDGETARY BASIS
(With Comparative Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2016)

SCHEDULE 6

Variance
2017 2017 Excess 2016
Budpget Actnal (Deficit) Actua]

1,216,785 1,216,785 - 1,217,865

5,000 (5,000)
1,221,785 1,216,785 (5,000 1,217,865
23 23 122
- 23 23 122
1,221,785 1,216,808 (4,977) 1,217 987

5,000 5,000

5,000 - 5,000 -
1,005,000 1,005,000 - 960,000
211,785 211,785 ~ 257,865
1,216,785 1,216,785 - 1,217,865
1,221,785 1,216,785 3,000 1,217,865
- 23 23 122
1,005,000 960,000
14,070 13,440
10,686 10,687
1,029,779 984,249
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SCHEDULE 7

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)
HOSPITAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Authority
Hospital Fund County
Total Expenses Expenses
Administration:
Salary and Wages 385,614 5 385,614
Other Expenses:
Fringe Benefits 209,672 209,672
Office Expenses 15,233 15,233
Bergen County Services -
Total Administrative Expenses 610,519 610,519 -
Cost of Providing Services:
Other Expenses:
Professional Fees 10,013,592 10,013,592
Health Benefits for Retirces 951,440 951,440
Pastoral Care 162,415 162,415
Interlocal Agreement with Bergen County-
Lease of Hospital Assets 1,425,026 1,425,026
Contract-Management of Hospital Operations 196,747,975 196,747 975
State of New Jersey Health Care Subsidy 1,361,502 1,361,502
Total Cost of Providing Services 210,661,950 209,710,510 951,440
Total Operating Expenses 211,272,469 210,321,029 951,440
Non-Operating Expenses:
Amortization Expense 2,341,591 2,341,591
Interest on Bonds and Notes 13,432 13,432
Total Non-Operating Expenses 2,355,023 2,355,023 -
213,627,492 $ 212,676,052 951,440
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

*okok ok koK w
COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017




Ferraioli, Wielkotz, Cerullo & Cuva, P.A.

Charles J. Ferraioli, Jr., MBA, CPA, RBMA Certified Public Accountants Newton Office
Steven D. Wielkotz, CPA, RMA 401 Wanaque Avenue 100B Main Street
James J. Cerulio, CPA, RMA Pompton Lakes, New Jersey 07442 Newton, N.J. 07860
Paul J. Cuva, CPA, RMA 973-835-7900 973-579-3212
Thomas M. Ferry, CFA, RMA Fax 973-835-6631 Fax 973-579-7128

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Chairperson and Commissioners
Bergen County Improvement Authority

327 E. Ridgewood Avenue, 3" Floor
Paramus, NJ 07652

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services, Department of Community
Affairs, State of New Jersey; and the standards applicable to financidl audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
Bergen County Improvement Authority, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated May 16, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit on the financial statements, we considered the Bergen County
Improvement Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bergen
County Improvement Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bergen County Improvement Authority’s internal control.

Qur consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
notidentified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, we identified
certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant
deficiencies. :

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis, We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses to be material weaknesses

(Findings 2017-1 and 2017-2).
FWCC
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Honorable Chairman and Members of the
Bergen County Improvement Authority
Page 2,

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Bergen County Improvement Authority’s
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Management’s Response to Findings

Bergen County Improvement Authority’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and responses. Management’s response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion
on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Feraioli, Wiclbaty, Corallo & Cuva, P.(L.

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey

May 16, 2018
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Compongent Unit of the County of Bergen)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

FINDING:

2017-01* CONDITION:
The Authority does not maintain a capital asset management accounting and reporting
system for its leasehold improvements, and capital assets ledger is not maintained for
major equipment purchases.

CRITERJA:
Governmental entities are required by N.J.A.C. 5:30-5.6 to maintain a fixed assets
accounting system including a subsidiary ledger of detailed records of fixed assets
and the related depreciation.

EFFECT:
Absent or inadequate controls over the safeguarding of assets.

CAUSE:
An inventory of the Authority's fixed assets and leasehold improvements has not been
performed.

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Authority implement a capital asset management accounting and reporting
system to reflect all fixed assets, leasehold improvements and equipment purchases
and the related depreciation,

VIEWS OF RESPONSIBLE OFFICIALS/CORRECTIVE ACTION:
Management is investigating possible solutions to correct this finding.

05,




2017-02

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (cont'd)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

CONDITION:
The Authority's books did not reflect the asset or the related note payable for the
purchase of a parcel of real property during the year.

Procedures should be in place to ensure that all assets purchased with Authority funds
and related liabilities be recorded on the books of the Authority.

EFFECT:
Inadequate or lack of controls over assets and liabilities.

CAUSE:
Authority personnel did not post the purchase of the asset and the related liability to
the general ledger.

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Authority implement controls o ensure that all assets purchased with
Authority funds and any related liabilities be recorded on the books of the Authority.

VIEWS OF RESPONSIBLE OFFICIALS/CORRECTIVE ACTION:
Procedures will be reviewed to ensure that all transactions are posted to the general
ledger accounts.
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2017-03

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (cont'd)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

CONDITION:

Employee health benefit contributions are not being reimbursed to the operating account

and reducing the health insurance premiums line item.

CRITERIA:
Employee health insurance contributions are required to be used to reduce the health
insurance premium line item,

EFFECT:
Overstatement of payroll taxes payable and health insurance expense.

CAUSE:
Authority personnel were unaware of this requirement.

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Authority transfer any employee health benefit contributions held in the
payroll accounts to the operating account on a timely basis to be refunded against the
health insurance premiums line item.

VIEWS OF RESPONSIBLE OFFICIALS/CORRECTIVE ACTION:
Procedures will be reviewed to ensure that transfers of employee health benefit
contributions are made on a timely basis.
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2017-04

BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (cont'd)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

CONDITION:
There were various overpayments of payroll taxes and health insurance premiums on
the Authority's books.

CRITERIA:
Proper amounts must be remitted for employee and employer payroll tax deductions.

EFFECT.
Errors or misstatements of payroll taxes or payables.

CAUSE:
Various overpayment errors were made in disbursements to agencies.

RECOMMENDATION:
That amounts remitted to agencies for payroll taxes be reviewed for propriety and
reconciled to tax returns prior to submission.

VIEWS OF RESPONSIBLE OFFICIALS/CORRECTIVE ACTION:
Payroll tax submissions will be reviewed for propriety prior to filing,
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

GENERAL COMMENTS

Contracts and Agreements Required to be Advertised Per N.J.S. 40A:11-3

N.J.S.A. 40A:11-2 contains definitions for terms used throughout N.J.S.A. 40A:11-1 et seq. and was
amended under P.L. 1999, ¢.440. It includes as subsection (23) the term ‘competitive contracting”, which
is defined as “the method described in sections 1 through 5 of P.L. 1999, c.440 (C.40:11-4.1 through
C.40A:11-4.5) of contracting for specialized goods and services in which formal proposals are solicited from
vendors’ formal proposals are evaluated by the purchasing agent or counsel; and the governing body awards
a contract to a vendor or vendors from among the formal proposals received.”

N.I.S.A. 40A:11-3 was amended with P.L, 1999, ¢.440 to raise the bid threshold and require award by
governing body resolution. “When the cost or price of any contract awarded by the purchasing agent in the
aggregate does not exceed in a contract year the total sum of $17,500, the contract may be awarded by a
purchasing agent when so authorized by ordinance or resolution as appropriate to the contracting unit, of the
governing body of the contracting unit without public advertising for bids and bidding therefore, except that
the governing body may adopt an ordinance or resolution to set a lower threshold for the receipt of public bids
or the solicitation of competitive quotations.” If the purchasing agent is qualified pursuant to subsection b,
of section 9 of P.L. 1971, ¢.198 (C.40A:11-9), the governing body of the contracting unit may establish that
the bid threshold may be up to $40,000. Such authorization may be granted for each contract or by a general
delegation of the power to negotiate and award such contracts pursuant to this section,

N.J.S.A. 40A:11-4 states that every confract awarded by the contracting agent for the provision or
performance of any goods or services, the cost of which in the aggregate exceeds the bid threshold, shall be
awarded only by resolution of the governing body of the contracting unit to the lowest responsible bidder after
public advertising for bids and bidding therefor, except as is provided otherwise in this act of specifically by
any other law. The governing body of a contracting unit may, be resolution approved by a majority of the
governing body and subject to subsections b. and ¢. of this section, disqualify a bidder who would otherwise
be determined to be the lowest responsible bidder, if the governing body finds that it has had prior negative
experience with the bidder.

Effective July 1, 2015, the bid threshold, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 40A:11-3 and 40A:11-4 (as amended)
is $17,500 and with a qualified purchasing agent the threshold may be up to $40,000,

N.J.S.A. 40A:11-15 was amended with P.L. 1999, ¢.440 to extend the base contract period. “Any contract
made pursuant to this section may be awarded for a period of 24 consecutive months, except that contracts
for professional services pursuant to paragraph (1) of subsection (a) of N.J.S.A. 40A:11-5 may be awarded
for a period not exceeding 12 consecutive months,”
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

GENERAL COMMENTS
(CONTINUED)

The governing body of the Authority has the responsibility of determining whether the expenditures in any
category will exceed the statutory threshold within the contract year.- Where question arises as to whether
any contract or agreement might result in violation of the statute, the Authority Counsel's opinion should be
sought before a commitment is made.

Resolutions were adopted authorizing the awarding of contracts and agreements for "Professional Services”
N.J.S. 40A:11-5.

Inasmuch as the system of records did not provide for an accumulation of payments for categories for the
performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any material or supplies, the results of such an
accumulation could not reasonably be ascertained. Disbursements were reviewed, however, to determine
whether any clear cut violation existed. No violations were disclosed.

The results of our examination indicated that no individual payments, contracts, or agreements were made
"for the performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies,” in excess of the
statutory thresholds where there had been no advertising for bids in accordance with the provision of N.J.S.A.
40A:11-4,
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BERGEN COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the County of Bergen)

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS/RECOMMENDATIONS

A review was performed on prior year’s recommendations and corrective action was taken on all items,
except for those marked with an “*”.

Problems and weaknesses noted in our review were not of such magnitude that they would affect our ability
to express an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole.

Should any questions arise as to our comments and recommendations, or should you desire assistance in
implementing our recommendations, do not hesitate to call us.

We wish to thank the Bergen County Improvement Authority for their cooperation during the performance
of our audit.

Respectfully submitted,

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ, CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
Pompton Lakes, New Jersey
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